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T EERTZ A ELRPEB R R
NP YREELTAL YL TSR 062- 1.321 170~ > * H AL LB 5 4F
W& % 34.80% ~ 44.58% % 41 23%’%%
.P-

RRTHEXF BRI #

EER £ Sl R 4 N R A N

REFPIERFES 2

~F7E%

(- )% % Byt &
7P 2007 # & 2008 # & 2009 # &
fte 4 (RMB:+ =) 61,630 92,487 133,592
A (RMB:# =~ ) 108,000 5 258,335
P& b (k) —(GL) 9,000 469,746,000
LS AR =k RTRIRTS L) 469,746,000 (3x) 9,000 216,530,310
PR e fE T 20 A O (%) | 469,746,000 (&) | 337,095,000 | 371,257,175
A AE P4 (RMB:~) 0.131 10,276.33 0.62
e @4 (RMB:A) 0.131 0.274 0.360
AR R FERT SRR 4.8141 4.8141 4.7289
HiR 185 % P (NTD: =) 0.63 1.32 1.70

212007 ERA BB P F A B AT Y EL M RHE T2 fld 2]
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P 2P tff | 2007 # & | 2008 & A& | 2009 & & |2010 & t L & &
% B W 34.80 44.58 41.23 20.17
IXE 1 2471 14.29 1.32 4.90 NA
37 9 2 (%) BN 12.78 8.08 12.80 NA
e (5.64) (11.63) (3.04) NA
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S AERMP I B SR E R
" f;;::;;;z 2007 & A 2008 & A 2009 £ A
o 37.23% 20.35% 36.55%
3ELH 34.55% 17.34% 18.70%
TEC = 32.31% 39.30% 37.82%
L 50.07% 49.04% 2163%
I 4156% 39.58% 11.30%
THLE 25.54% 75.92% 28.79%
ey 36.88% 41.76% 25.80%
I ARG A RS SR L A A
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FEREFT £ mBAY
d 3t 4 2010 & 4 + % »>2009
%2010 & F X &g

Arocd A RERHY o KA REPRE AR o FTAEAFRAEIAAER
A3 E TR RPN E R ED 2017% ¢

7&@’ .‘,’E ,'_é: ﬁg
S )E R F AR

i 2007 £ & 2008 & & | 2009 & &
a5 4] (RMB:IH =) 61,630 92,487 133,592
i+ (RMB:H =) 108,000 5 258,335
Bk omad f ok () — (o) 9,000 469,746,000
&Aoo fE T 0¥ (L) | 469,746,000 (1) 9,000 216,530,310
B (5 4c JE T 204 @ R iie(PR) | 469,746,000 (3x) | 337,095,000 | 371,257,175
A A& P4 (RMB:~) 0.131 10,276.33 0.62
ﬁr% 5w @4 (RMB:~) 0.131 0.274 0.360
ENER T 4.8141 4.8141 4.7289
e E R E&(NTD: <) 0.63 1.32 1.70
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LA TEL AT 0 ¥ mAF k% 2007 £ B 5 p
Bt E 0 R Y B BT IPO 2% d 555 469,746,000 53t E
EPEVEMAGZ ERFRFHIFE AR EABEE pRL
BRHZHEE o
()R EPRZFRABREFMIERFELZ S Z AT

1323 MEiT= 2R 2 2010 & + L 2 R A EZ WP 1)

2010 #
% B A 2007 # & | 2008 & & | 2009 & & L aag
AR .
kZ B . , _ _
wpioy | HEEW 34.80 44.58 41.23 20,17
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BITZ ERZEBILAE S A F P i 4 34.80% 0 F 0 A & 7
EEAT S D o TARTHEAE ST LR e
TRTHAET Lo s 8D H%7 0 T A
%Jﬁ]éﬁ%#éﬁmﬁﬁé"‘

,y:};%,‘

DR H KRB 2P F TR o

aizm0ﬁliﬁ,«g@4
2009 # 3 % A7 5 %
4Mam2wm’@*“*%%iv
%73 2017% 0 5
ok R

282 F R R

2,002,968 i

Bl PK%@
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~a i 3
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%P@$7t13°
R ek T A

el 2 E A B EF
2010 = 6

F"'
A

"frﬂ;z

&% ¥ ARAHEK
¥ 3%
i‘flj'i%”j?

PR AR E A
30 p 2 e H

PorE AR ROLL L

X AEL 2007 # & | 2008 £ & | 2009 & & |2010 & + X & B
YO 3E 5,191,251 | 6,669,122 | 6,489,971 5,017,838
LA 15.87% | 15.86% 17.83% 13.67%
fts @ g 296,694 | 445,242 631,734 263,471
e EX 3 5.72% 6.68% 9.73% 5.25%
EFEIEE 1= 852,486 | 998,859 | 1,532,302 3,224,630
WK E AR S 34.80% | 44.58% 41.23% 20.17
Xf ’:J = ifﬁf 6.00 ¥ < | 6.68 = | 424 i = 1.56 i+ =
EFIRTRRER
Y ot 7,865,048 | 6,931,733 | 5,775,978 —
B e 8.59% 6.59% 5.89% —
Fis b F 785,611 70,079 238,939 —
samq |[PEF 10.07% 1.02% 4.18% —
A EXZIRE 5+ 5,497,221 | 5,319,611 | 4,875,441 —
A AR 14.29% 1.32% 4.90% —
WEtRd® | 3a 13002 | 1186 —
EYRIRER
Y ycE R 4,160,239 | 4,547,228 | 3,843,459 —
B e 8.24% 6.29% 6.72% —
Fis s F 156,248 94,552 158,399 —
. R 3.76% 2.08% 4.12% —
EFEIEE - 1,222,930 | 1,170,748 | 1,237,524 —
R E A 12.78% 8.08% 12.80% —
i~ T g L L L
T 340 < | 388 A | 3114~ —
Y ycE4E 7,583,269 | 8,066,833 | 4,026,383 —
e 2.05% 2.09% 5.37% —
Y (133,616) | (255,308) (62,311) —
@ s g (L.77%) | (3.18%) (1.56%) —
| EXEIEE 1 2,369,558 | 2,195,504 | 2,048,053 —
K B F R (5.64%) | (11.63%) (3.04%) —
> i‘:’i}:
ff %;ﬂ,{%éf; 3204~ | 367 # | 197HA _
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ERG RN ARDFRFAFFIEEE  RTEEEAST TR
3\#&,1 BiTz #RZ 2010 &£ F XL f|F o6l i 1587% -
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Vo AR &@ﬁu%-&&% ] % 5.72% - 6.68% %
9.73% s 5 F LI B30 p *rsﬁawgzw?‘4gbtaﬁ 8 o § 2 b IRE] R
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ﬂwx- PO BRGZERZ VAT ERAL AR A B AP Y £

L ,A\ujn 76.06% ~ 72.59% ~ 74.47%% 7820% > * #Z 27 R B BT

HREE Bt RYTHARIE BB - A B 5 4 R 321,438+376,263 2 360,620 + ~ »

p%‘fl:rpxixjr_tﬁ P E T W 50%2 E r P md WP EREE TERPH Rk
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2007 & 2008 # 2009 # 2010 £ 1~6 *
WX WL S E(A) 22.09% 17.03% 25.53% 20.75%
WA RAEE 2L E(B) 1.85% 10.38% 0.00% 1.05%
£ 3t 23.94% 27.41% 25.53% 21.80%
2007 # 2008 # 2009 # 2010 & 1~6 *
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(= )& ew ¥ (7R
Hi:Aaa%iFra ;9%
2009 £ 12 | #1200 #6 " 30p ([#312010#6* 30¢p
I B " 31p &% ¢ ew A (2) A e w 2035 (3)=(1)-(2)
1) £3F i) £3F v
Bl & 9y 3,060 3,060 100.00% 0] 0.00%
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14 I R S %1 ﬁi"}; D ﬁ]% 12,066 1.12 1
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4, o | B (B
7 = R EX YN & 37 (‘};o) " A BE 4
15 [ d1 E(FE")F I 3y 11,256 1.04] &
16 [PR2A- 5 (B8) 3227 BES 11,193 1.04] &
17 |ABd g4 409 [ ) 11,053 1.03| =
18 |#EH 7t AP MPET 2P T A 11,025 1.02| =
19 [T ® §¢+Ex3227 T bk 10,661 099 =&
20 | mEER G AT RE 9,964 092 =&
21 |o VA I g A R BEEL P Tk 9,554 0.89] =&
22 i mEmT 1o BEYA L7 ey 8,534 079 #
23 |22z diimed aog T A 8,442 0.78] &
24 |vaEpEw A A 2y 8,407 0.78| =&
25 |E1 4 AEHT RSP L) 8,262 077, =
26 |Ey 3 E@RXATHETESF AP 3K 7,609 071 &
27 |RIEFTE R BB F AN P Bk 7,544 0.70| =&
28 |4RERT frg T 4 142G AN P ) 7,323 0.68] i
29 51 AW 4 AR AR P [N ) 7,155 0.66| =&
30 ¥ TpET S BEHH G LoD Tk 6,783 063 &
31 ([P RE - ogFEXP 3k 6,515 0.60] =
32 [T &g h [N ) 6,402 059 =&
33 (32 2Pt FHF AT NP s, 6,387 059 &
34 |ragiEEgasg 3y 6,045 0.56] &
35 |F % Fw &kt AP Rk 6,034 056 &
36 |["E Bl EAERES A E LD BE] 6,031 056] =
37 PRSP RERD (REM) RT3 ARSI Ik 5,624 052 &
38 |z "WETd g AR Tk 5,622 052 &
39 PR SEERCPRE PR ELR B 5,568 052 &
0 [Ejo Eropgedarn ET R 5,555 052 =
41 (R 2 A1y Aa? Bk 5,500 051 =&
42 |igH ',‘@;! TAIRLIPFELADD Tk 5,236 049 =&
43 |TCL % Fa 3( R BE 5,187 048] &
4 |34 iEgtiFEod Tk 5,114 047, =
45 |ifhEe 5+ ARSI 'O Pk pBA O D 3 ¥ 4,986 0.46] =&

s 540,254 50.10
Hi 538,089 49.90
e 1,078,343 100.00

AY

:
LR S 2 2007 £ GEET HAPHPIFILTF AP

w3 B B > 2008 E4zied R R B

22008 ER ] L5 Lt EARTF AP EHA 2P
2008 #

. < P P "'—hﬁ 3 /g: %“F bt" );? f;
=% f”f?— ?Fﬁ"fi%? £ ((50) LB A
1 |23 EAHFFFRTEHL 2P(GL2) ) 83,681 6.04| =

2 LR T A 4)§ L A EN % 54,357 3.92 i

3 [PYRREEG INP(GEY) Bk 38,730 280 =&

4 |a#iis RFF AP X F 38,078 2.75| &

5 [ |l;\g3£ EREE T e 36,307 262 =&
IR Y 29,704 214 =&

7 [pF ch_;;; RIED B Tk 28,485 206 =

8 XA ER TG AP R 27,193 1.96| =&

9 %y‘g R A Y 21,673 1.57| =&
10 [BFRFF LT AP R 21,495 1.55| &
11 (g3 P4 HF73 AP B2 A 20,522 148 =&
12 [P Pazz g o Bk 19,693 142 =&
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. —y s ¥ RS e
_ r'fﬁ- 7#-7}2'}:’}—%"— ﬁ%? (%) X RE ta

BLEZHFFERDD o) 18,079 131 =&
% @4‘@; TR E]Hd‘“'v 15,771 114 =&
AGIEE R BEAET 3 AN P ) 15,387 111 &
TR EREFFEEF AP 2k 13,782 099 &
tAaAFRRFF AP o 13,087 094 =&
FULDRE A4 BHA L4 I BT A 12,991 094 =&
AR LN A Ay 12,236 0.88] &
AP BT BERIAR AP I 11,931 0.86| =
e Aot BrABE B X ¢ T f b et 1 AR, 303N B 11,319 082 =&
A EEEN G LD Rk 11,244 081 =&
RER T O P R A 11,079 0.80] =&
R e A i T Ay 10,851 0.78] =
IR HERG I o 10,591 0.76] =&
YD T IR AENREG 7 Y 10,067 0.73] =&
L dnrEms I BT h 9,464 068 =
AT J\ KA P Bk 8,963 0.65 =&
B i —Q %_1 ”ﬁ LREAES ]_35]% 8,887 0.64 o
ZHEAEZNET T LFELP T A 8,081 058 &
FoEAsE L EBT AFE P By 8,047 058 &
&s_/l«ﬁgglﬁ]p G ) 7,976 058 &
P - BRI ARG L P Sk 7,840 057 &
AR \7& m\ o 2k 7,689 0.56| &
HEFRT A BHGFIFE NP BT A 7,590 055 =&
SRR BR PP T aH P ET h 7,272 052 =&
LB RME G P Y 6,890 050 =
,ﬁg_m% RS A R A 6,765 049 =&

693,796 50.08

691,535 49.92

1,385,331 100.00

TR A 2P 2007 E REET RSP ANEF LT F LD e % E MR 0 2008 £ Azid R R B
Tﬁ]“ﬁ I J}%Fi
3.2 :2008 & LRIt EAHTF AP
2009 =
(b4l (gap | B g i
“ 4t £ s | PP TR

,jg TR R E WG o P (G ]) =T A 68,988 503 =&
g Ee| T 4 eshw,; PG ) 66,459 484 =&
R ETE i R >3 L P Sk 58,947 430 &
PR R ,gg_s; P Dk 31,708 231 &
T EAHTF LD BHA (32 2) BT A 29,597 216 &
FNP HiE% g Ao P Bk 24,545 1.79 E
EE ] TN FERT EE O P ) 20,536 149 =&
Ld P Az iRt Lo P Sk 18,309 1.33 1
F 1 ;;;fr_@-;m AT L) 15,820 1.15 &

T ET B ETh 15,471 1.13] &
aFFNFLERT ISP ) 14,910 109 &
REETEEE A T R 14,296 1.04 .
PORA ER R T P 3 14,254 1.04 e
R = A T (R 14,083 1.03 E
EHGR PR EF AP ® 12,563 092 =&
,lﬁﬂ;r Fit14 g : 12,173 089 &
411,11 BEBT I B A 2P ' 10,636 077 #
IEEET AT 10,366 0.76] =&
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(=N [y FAAEE L1 * ﬁ(o%/lo) ¥ A ng ,f/zf
TE R R TR 10,346 075 &
20 P4t - MR A1 ARG TN F 2k 9,718 071 &
21 [gwgdagnny [ ) 9,444 069 &
22 |5 & ABABE B ATR S R F AR E R g 30 B 9,347 068 &
23 PR AER TR REL TR ELPD kS 8,975 0.65 £
24 |3 ®H FRhT 4 iERG AT ERh 8,565 0.62 E
25 | VA ERT 4 ERG LD P T A 8,142 0.59 o
26 R EpndmEgie oA Dk 8,072 059 &
27 [ Av 2 14t 1 P Rk 7,870 057] =&
28 [% VKRR & 4 7,870 057 =
29 [ErA T3 10 mPpiEg 07 ETh 7,603 055 &
0 |FEEFERTIFFF AN LN 7,581 0.55 e
31 (R 2 emtrigaa B3 7,436 054 &
R (2 AFATEXTRTEH ISP A E 7,180 052 #
33 | A mpELP 3 Y 6,277 0.46 E
34 [EiriEg (GEREFHRE) R'EFE G I Rk 6,273 0.46] &
35 [FMEAMF L XTGP Bk 5,894 043 #
36 |[YRERE g o T b 5,874 043 &
37 irged pp %4107 A E 5,855 043 =
38 [ira? THILEFTF IDA BT A 5,837 043 =
39 |VARETIEES AP 2y 5,487 0.41 Eoy
4 [P = naBME 142t ' @ i 5,425 040 =
41 PEL S ABNBE S R A AT AT A E A B ¥ 5412 039 #
42 |ty 4109 Ay 5,243 0.38 E
43 [d 474 2P e TP BT A 5,197 038 &
a4 :ﬂ@ﬁ?%ib%%@ﬁ-@'?%ﬂlfi’ﬁ WP 5e 148 R 5,069 037 &
45 |E g (GRERB) k& %3127 2k 5,055 0371 &
46 [ Fs EAER L ARG AN P A Y 5,005 0.36 E
47 e $hT f F®F A BT 4,940 036 &
48 %% (YR) Ad3aa 3 4,885 036 =&
49 P AERI IR 4 e R RSB L T P T 2k 4,822 035 &
50 [V ABETE (W) 3 10l adghra? 34 4,790 0.35| &
5l |pikEEHAI T AT ERY S P Y 4,726 0.34 E
52 |ix@ g kR 1deh B 4,633 034 =&
53 |[* 43 ART A B P k) 4,589 033 &
54 [jEs hiEad @ L1 1o P e 4,571 033 =&

7 ' 687,672 50.11

g 684,734 49.89

&2t 1,372,406 100.00

iyt = 2007&: BET RPN REY RN P w2 BERME 0 2008 £z d VR R E

x 2 2008 i *’é«:“aﬁiil'r“ EAHRFFRATEHL, P
2010 # 1~6 *
) . s ||
AN - H EX e U £%F g &4(50)/ # X % f",&
HEEEEEEY Y R T A 66,206 6.23] #
2 ;g TRREET Lo PG =3 Ak 35,130 331 =&
3 |[#FRFFET NP =T A 31,834 3.000 =&
4 |FEY HE% G Lo B 28,721 270 &
5 |[Pae BEBRTF C1MmET AN B 16,368 154 =&
6 [|FRamsining 1o Bk 11,826 111 =&
7 |z afEatios Rk 11,333 1.07] &
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LAz (1) 390D 3y 11,172 1.05] &
gV AT 4 B4 TP ET h 9,745 0.92| =&
PHTF P AERY - 14 L P 3 9,267 0.87| &
CETY T Rk 9,068 0.85| &
rza b:a @k@:‘!’ é’p 7 A EN % 8,717 0.82| =
FAcg BEHH R 0P ET A 8,432 079 &
¢ R4 g__:,sb RS A Bk 7,982 0.75| =
R AT T h 7,772 0.73| =&
R T AT B 7,702 0.73] &
3R AFEIFET AP FL LR =7k 7,528 071 &
HhEREFEHT T o 7,094 0.67] #&
LA EEREEG P wEh 6,776 0.64] =
IEFBE G IR o 6,368 0.60 =
ExLidr2ir (355) 43 9o 5 6,100 057 &
55 rEFERR GG AT R R 5,984 0.56| =
fr% AL RR R A Bk 5,809 055 =
.,m EAFFF NP EH A 2 P(GE2) =Tk 5,621 053 &
A FLIEREZ ET AT AL O F Y 5,531 052 =&
FAKEERAT EI ARG N A 5,500 052 =&
IR T Dk 5,315 0.50] &
ArERT P ) 5,135 048 =
FiH FrE@E 4 B gL o) 4,931 0.46| =
T A REEG AN B A DD =Tk 4,930 0.46| =&
I EP A FEEEG P R A 4,862 0.46] &
IR T e AT B 3 4,725 044 &
L EFTE g P B ¥ 4,650 044 &
R RS Y A T T h 4,537 043 =
TEH ERE A iEXG AP E7 h 4,520 0.43] &
R L P R R Y TR BE 4,081 038
tABLEAFFF AP =k 3,751 0.35| &
TCL 24 ®B(F 1) 127 Rk 3,739 035 =&
YT A P AR IR LG LN P Bk 3,714 0.35| =
LA g o ) 3,702 0.35| =
T R A RS 3,637 0.34| =&
I e I A s Y 3,562 0.34] &
‘EB‘TfL “‘__J_ 4!‘14\;‘1531 ";a’—'- ) ,
B RATEETREHG P 2 ¥ 3,515 033 &
FRETODLET O T Ak 3,442 032 &
e A R B e 3,422 0.32] =
L & BL1 fRiE 2k H T B Rk 3,359 0.32] =&
HE T EBG IR B 3,216 0.30] &
IR E A EG LD 3y 3,180 030 &
Z et £ AaEg G LD =T h 3,166 0.30| =
o e i e A B S R 3,122 0.29] =&
W ETHR G FTF AP F TR 3,026 028 =
ERTEMG Ly E L Rk 2,978 028 &
R TR s Bk 2,951 0.28| =&
ArHE4 D ET h 2,928 0.28| =&
LM A RET L P Y 2,918 0.27] =&
VAR AR A L P B 2,861 027 =&
FES LA s daigg "o s A 3 2,840 027 &
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61 |#TH i‘p ERE@EG LT 2 F 2,834 027 &
62 |irpgEi EHm 2k 2,833 027 &
63 |% il PELIR G P ¥ 2,806 0.26] &
64 |3 %7 TEXBEEENG TP 3, Y 2,740 0.26| =
65 |FamemF "armuEg o 2k 2,589 024 =
66 |[MEmE (b)) B AFTF AR F TR 2,551 0.24)
67 |[FretRFAEYFIFELP A 2,549 0.24] =&
68 |Fia® B #—ﬁ LA EN ’% 2,525 0.24| =&
69 |[tca 4 wveiEgsigEs =T h 2,480 023 &
70 [~ 47 pad BEHT AP =7 kA 2,305 022 =&
71 A3 SREEBRHG LD P Rk 2,296 0.22] =&
72 | fam £ o 2y 2,293 022 =
73 |32 (gd) 3207 A 2,247 021 =
R YT 3, Y 2,239 021 =
75 |igsmegd ' lor o 2,230 021 =
76 |[pEiEg o BTk 2,215 021 &=
77 FaRdg ﬁﬁ’vﬁ 1N A EN % 2,213 021 =
78 [V EXR BB X4 90 e 2,192 021 &
79 |[tapZEad ¥(EE)F P 2k 2,170 021 &
80 [FriA-HHEFEF AP 3 2,163 021 &
81 é; EET R R ) 2,156 020 &
82 |& /J'ﬂ-(sff LAY = A 2 2,060 019 &
83 |r "EawE1qd Lo EER G LD Ik 2,001 019 =
84 P BB EE (£ ) AP 2k 1,972 0.19|] =&
85 |mx&a @i+ gE; NP 3k 1,956 018 &
86 s (BB) Tde ] (f sy B 1,934 0.18] &

)3t 531,409 50.02

H 530,927 49.98

£ 2 1,062,336 100.00

E1IHPNT A P 2007 EAEEB TR N F LT 7o d% B BB R 2008 £ Azid VR R R
MG PR
32:2008 # R L AR EAHTF LD BEHAL D
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China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Directors’ Report

The directors are pleased to present their report to the members together with the audited
combined financial statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Dai Zhi Xiang (Appointed on 31 December 2008)
Yeung Wai Wing (Appointed on 26 May 2008)

Liu Xue Wen (Appointed on 12 May 2009)

Toe Teow Heng (Appointed on 1 October 2009)
Wee Liang Hiam (Appointed on 28 October 2009)
Chen Timothy Teck Leng (Appointed on 28 October 2009)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares, warrants and debentures

The following director, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register
of directors’ shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act,
Cap. 50, an interest in shares and warrants of the Company, as stated below:

Direct interest Deemed interest
At At
date of At end of date of At end of
Name of director appointment financial year appointment financial year
The Company
Ordinary shares
Yeung Wai Wing - - 1,000 1,000

Except as disclosed in this report, no other director who held office at the end of the financial year
had interests in shares or warrants of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the
beginning of the financial year or at the end of the financial year.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Directors’ Report

Directors’ contractual benefits

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no
director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the
director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Dai Zhi Xiang
Director

Liu Xue Wen
Director

Singapore
31 December 2009



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Statement by Directors Pursuant to Section 201(15)

We, Dai Zhi Xiang and Liu Xue Wen, being two of the directors of China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte

Ltd, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors,

0] the accompanying balance sheets, combined profit and loss accounts, statements of
changes in equity, and combined cash flow statement together with the notes thereto are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2008, and the results of the business, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the financial year

ended on that date, and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will

be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Dai Zhi Xiang
Director

Liu Xue Wen
Director

Singapore
31 December 2009



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Report From the Independent Auditors in relation to the

Audited Combined Financial Statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd
and its subsidiary companies

for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2008

To the members of China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings
Pte Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiary companies (collectively the “Group”) which comprise the
balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2008, and the statements of
changes in equity of the Group and Company, the combined profit and loss account and combined
statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair profit and loss account and balance sheet and to maintain accountability
of assets; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Report From the Independent Auditors in relation to the

Audited Combined Financial Statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd
and its Subsidiary Companies

for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2008

Opinion
In our opinion,

() the combined financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of
changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2008 and the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date; and

(ii) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

31 December 2009



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Combined Profit and Loss Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Note 2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Revenue 4 1,385,331 1,078,343
Cost of sales (1,165,636) (907,189)
Gross profit 219,695 171,154
Other income 6,638 2,257
Selling and distribution expenses (35,723) (35,073)
Administrative expenses (33,263) (22,579)
Finance expenses (29,512) (19,667)
Profit before taxation 5 127,835 96,092
Taxation 6 (35,348) (34,462)
Profit representing total comprehensive income
attributable to equity holders of the Company 92,487 61,630

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2008

Group Company
Note 2008 2007 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 101,926 90,838 -
Intangible assets 9 2,344 2,245 -
Land use rights 10 32,070 37,696 -
Investment in a subsidiary 1.3 - - 192,201
Investment in an associate 11 - 4,095 -
Deferred tax assets 23 2,989 2,456 -
Trade receivables 15 4,658 5,410 -
Cash and bank balances 16 1,300 2,600 -

145,287 145,340 192,201
Current assets
Inventories 12 59,449 119,782 -
Prepayments 13 36,385 31,162 -
Amount due from minority interests 14 - 7,900 -
Trade and other receivables 15 376,263 321,438 -
Cash and bank balances 16 87,136 48,675 286

559,233 528,957 286
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 115,311 93,492 -
Accrued operating expenses 17 13,301 3,625 1,093
Loans and borrowings 18 269,700 350,000 -
Amount due to an associate 19 - 19,900 -
Amount due to a director 20 70,000 - -
Deferred capital grants 21 238 1,108 -
Provision for taxation 13,515 11,726 -

482,065 479,851 1,093
Net current assets 77,168 49,106 (807)
Non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ loans 22 (1,028) - (1,028)
Deferred tax liabilities 23 (900) - -
Net assets 220,527 194,446 190,366
Equity attributable to equity holders

of the parent
Share capital 24 5 108,000 5
Revenue reserve 92,025 65,031 1,471
Statutory reserve 25 23,808 13,315 -
Merger reserve 25 (84,201) - -
31,637 186,346 1,476

Minority interests - 8,100 -
Shareholders’ loans 22 116,568 - 116,568
Convertible loans 26 72,322 - 72,322
Total equity 220,527 194,446 190,366

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Statutory

Share Revenue reserve Merger Total Minority Shareholders’ Convertible
Note Capital  reserve fund reserve  reserves Total interests loans loans Total

Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Balance at 1 January 2007 108,000 44,770 6,946 - 51,716 159,716 - - - 159,716
Profit representing total -

comprehensive income for the year 61,630 - - 61,630 61,630 - - - 61,630
Partial disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - 8,100 - - 8,100
Transfer to statutory reserve fund - (6,369) 6,369 - - - - - - -
Dividends on ordinary shares 27 - (35,000) - - (35,000) (35,000) - - - (35,000)
Balance at 1 January 2008 108,000 65,031 13,315 - 78,346 186,346 8,100 - - 194,446
Profit representing total

comprehensive income for the year - 92,487 - - 92,487 92,487 - - - 92,487
Adjustment arising from Restructuring

Exercise (108,000) - - (84,201) (84,201) (192,201) - - - (192,201)
Issuance for ordinary shares 5 - - - - 5 - - - 5
Issuance of shareholders’ loans - - - - - - - 116,568 - 116,568
Issuance of convertible loans - - - - - - - - 72,322 72,322
Acquisition of minority interests - - - - - - (8,100) - - (8,100)
Transfer to statutory reserve fund - (10,493) 10,493 - - - - - - -
Dividends on ordinary shares 27 - (55,000) - - (55,000) (55,000) - - - (55,000)
Balance at 31 December 2008 5 92,025 23,808 (84,201) 31,632 31,637 - 116,568 72,322 220,527

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Company

Balance at 1 January 2008
Profit representing total
comprehensive income
for the year
Issuance for ordinary shares
Issuance of shareholders’ loans

Issuance of convertible loans

Balance at 31 December 2008

Share-

Share Revenue holder's Convertible

capital reserve loan loans Total

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- 1,471 - - 1,471
5 - - - 5
- - 116,568 - 116,568
- - - 72,322 72,322
5 1,471 116,568 72,322 190,366

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Combined Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

Operating profit before changes in

working capital (Notel6 (b)) 166,265 124,756
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 58,073 (48,188)
Increase in prepayments (5,223) (16,303)
Increase in trade and other receivables (117,704) (25,407)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 21,819 (1,372)
Increase in accrued operating expenses 9,659 121
Cash generated from operating activities 132,889 33,607
Interest income received 305 265
Interest expense paid (24,803) (19,440)
Taxation paid (33,192) (35,191)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 75,199 (20,759)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of minority interests (Note 28) (9,760) -
Net cash flow on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 28) (6,164) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition from restructuring (Note 1) (192,201) -
Proceeds from disposal of managed funds 1,300 -
Increase in long term deposits - (2,300)
Purchase of intangible asset (400) -
Purchase of land use rights - (13,410)
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights 4,879 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,476) (21,353)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 39 -
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to an associate (19,900) 19,900
Net cash used in investing activities (243,683) (16,163)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 5 -
Proceeds from issuance of convertible loans 72,322 -
Proceeds from government grant 260 920
Loans from third parties, net 72,062 (30,398)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 451,000 504,000
Repayment of loans and borrowings (521,300) (401,000)
Proceeds from shareholders’ loans 117,596 -
Increase in amount due to a director 70,000 -
(Increase)/decrease in deposits pledged (2,065) 15,762
Dividends paid (55,000) (35,000)
Proceeds from disposal of equity interests to minority interests - 200
Net cash generated from financing activities 204,880 54,484
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,396 17,562
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 48,625 31,063
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 16(a)) 85,021 48,625

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Corporate information
The Company

China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd (the Company) was incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore on 26 May 2008 as a private company limited by shares. The Company was
incorporated for the purpose of acquiring the existing companies of the Group pursuant to
the Group’s Restructuring Exercise as described in Note 1.2 to the financial statements.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is 30 Raffles Place
#20-02 Chevron House Singapore 048622. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding.

The Restructuring Exercise

The Group carried out a Restructuring Exercise as a result of which the Company became
the holding company of the Group. The Restructuring Exercise is as described below.

€) Acquisition of subsidiaries

In the financial year ended 31 December 2008, Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co.,
Ltd. acquired equity interests in Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd.,
Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd., Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminum Industry Co.,
Ltd. and Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd. for a total purchase
consideration of RMB 24,105,000 on various dates. Details of these acquisitions
have been described in Note 28 to the financial statements.

(b) Incorporation of the Company

On 26 May 2008, the Company was incorporated in Singapore as a holding
company with an initial issued and paid-up capital of SGD 1,000 (RMB 5,000).

(c) Acquisition of Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co Ltd

On 15 July 2008, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 100% of the equity interest of Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB 192,200,500.

The Subsidiary Companies
2008

RMB’000
Unquoted equity shares at cost, as at 31 December 192,201

The subsidiaries of the Company subsequent to the Restructuring Exercise are as follow:-

Country of Proportion
incorporation (%)
and place of ownership
Name Principal activities of business interest
2008 2007
Held by the Company
Wuxi Hu An Wire and  Manufacture and sale of wire, PRC 100% 100%
Cable Co., Ltd. cable (electrical) and related
products
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2.1

Corporate information (cont’d)

The Subsidiary Companies (cont’d)

Country of Proportion
incorporation (%)
and place of ownership
Name Principal activities of business interest
2008 2007
Held through Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co., Ltd.
Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacture and sale of wire, PRC 100% 20.5%
Manufacturing Co., cable and related products
Ltd.
Wuxi Shenhuan Manufacture and sale of copper PRC 100% 60%
Copper Industry Co.,  wire and related products
Ltd.
Wuxi Shenhuan Manufacture and sale of PRC 100% 99.5%
Aluminum industry aluminum wire and related
Co., Ltd. products
Wuxi Hu An Cable Research and development of PRC 100% -
Research Co., Ltd. wire, cable and related products

(currently dormant)
Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The combined financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

The combined financial statements of the Group presented for financial year ended 31
December 2008, have been prepared using the pooling of interest method as the Company
and its subsidiary companies were under common control before and after the
Restructuring Exercise as described in Note 1.2 above. Under the pooling of interest
method, the combined financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2008 have been presented as if the Group had been in existence for all periods
presented and the assets and liabilities are brought into the combined financial statements
at their existing carrying amounts. The retained earnings and other reserves recognized
in the combined financial statements are the retained earnings and other reserves of Wuxi
Hu An Wire and Cable Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries immediately before the combination.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except as disclosed
in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi (RMB) and all values in the
tables are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000) as indicated.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Notes to the Combined Financial Statements — 31 December 2008

2.2

2.3

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Changes in accounting policies

The Group has early adopted the following FRS which is effective for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2009:-

FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Revised Presentation
FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Amendments relating to Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Revised presentation

The revised FRS 1 requires owner and non-owner changes in equity to be presented
separately. The statement of changes in equity includes only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line item. In addition,
the revised standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all
items of income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.

The early adoption of the above FRSs did not have any material impact on the financial
statements.

Future changes in accounting policies

The Group has not adopted the following FRS and INT FRS that have been issued but not
yet effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2008:

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

FRS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009
FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2009
- Amendments relating to Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — 1 January 2009
Amendments relating to Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009
Measurement — Amendments relating to eligible
hedged items
FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting 1 January 2009
Standards — Amendments relating to Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

FRS 102 Share-based payment — Vesting Conditions and 1 January 2009
Cancellations

FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 January 2009

INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008

INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
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2.4

2.5

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Future changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

The directors expect that the adoption of the above pronouncements will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application, except for FRS 108 as
indicated below.

FRS 108 Operating Segments

FRS 108 requires entities to disclose segment information based on the information
reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker. The impact of this standard on the
other segment disclosures is still to be determined. As this is a disclosure standard, it will
have no impact on the financial position and results of the Group when implemented in
20009.

Basis of consolidation

The combined financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
used in the preparation of the combined financial statements are prepared for the same
reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. All intra-group balances, income and
expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for by
applying the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts reported in the combined financial statements of the
controlling holding company. The profit and loss account reflects the results of the
combining entities for the full year, irrespective of when the combination takes place.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Depreciation of an asset
begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 5years
Office equipment 5years
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2.6

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under construction. Construction-in-progress
is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
@) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating
unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the unit, including the
allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the unit. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised for
goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

(b) Software
Software is initially measured at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over an

estimated useful life of 10 years. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The land use rights are amortised over the lease term of 50 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses recognised for an asset may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

A financial asset is derecognised when

@) the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or
(b) the Group transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit and loss account.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on
the trade date i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets held for trading are financial assets acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the financial assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Net gains or net
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include exchange
differences, interest and dividend income.

(b) Loans and receivables

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial
assets is reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account,
the amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying
value of the financial asset.
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2.13

2.14

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
@) Assets carried at amortised cost (cont’d)

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default
or significant delay in payments.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

(b) Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business
environment where the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the issuer) that an impairment loss on a financial asset
carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances less secured deposits,
managed funds and long term deposits.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials and supplies: purchase costs on a weighted average basis

. Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
These costs are assigned on a weighted average basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
where, as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies

Notes to the Combined Financial Statements — 31 December 2008

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in the profit and loss
account, either separately or under a general heading such as “Other income”. Alternatively,
they are deducted in reporting the related expenses

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables which are normally settled on 30 to 90 day terms,
other amounts payable, payables to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings. Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process. The liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due.

Financial guarantees are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial guarantees are recognised as income in the profit and loss account over the
period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability will be higher than the amount
initially recognised less amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher amount with the
difference charged to the profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised if
they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs
are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are ready for their
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recorded.
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2.20

2.21

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Employee benefits
@) Defined contribution plan

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of
the PRC. The Group pays fixed contributions into the retirement insurance and
medical insurance schemes organised by the social security bureau and has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee compensation expense when they are
due.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. An accrual is made for estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
service rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of
the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional
currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
closing rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the balance sheet date are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair

value of consideration received or receivable.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to
the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Income taxes

(@)

(b)

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
(other than those mentioned above), carry-forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.24

2.25
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Income taxes (cont’d)
(c) Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax
except:

. Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments. A geographical segment is a distinguishable component
of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
components operating in other economic environments.

Share capital and share issue expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital.

Transaction with minority interests

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not
held by the Group and are presented separately in the combined profit and loss account
and within equity in the combined balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders’
equity. Transactions with minority interests are accounted for using the entity concept
method, whereby, transactions with minority interests are accounted for as transactions
with equity holders. On acquisition of minority interests, the difference between the
consideration and book value of the share of the net assets acquired is reflected as being a
transaction between owners and recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to
minority interests is recognised directly in equity.

Contingencies

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group.
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in the future.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group-wide provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities/(assets) for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of the Group’s income tax payables
and deferred tax liabilities/(assets), net at 31 December 2008 were RMB
13,515,000 and (RMB 2,089,000) (2007 : RMB 11,726,000 and (RMB 2,456,000)).

Revenue recognition/warranty

The Group recognises revenue arising from sale of wire, cable and related products
and most sales arrangements require the retention of a certain percentage of the
total contracted sum by the customers until the expiry of the warranty period.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Significant
assumptions are required to estimate the recoverability of retention sums and the
additional costs required to fulfil the warranty obligations by the Group. The
estimates are made based on past experiences and warranty costs are provided,
where necessary. The carrying amounts of the retention sums for the various
financial years have been disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets

The determination of impairment of financial asset requires significant judgement.
The Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset is less than its cost; and the financial health of a near-
term business outlook for the financial asset, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, operational and financing cash flow.
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3.2

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and
equipment to be within 5 to 20 years. The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2008 was RMB 101,926,000 (2007 : RMB 90,838,000).
Changes in the expected level of usage could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.
Revenue

Revenue represents invoiced trading sales to customers, less discounts given, and exclude
Value Added Tax.

Profit before taxation

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before taxation:

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other income:
- government subsidy 4,654 593
- interest income 305 265
- foreign currency exchange gain 1,473 -
- sale of scraps - 1,399
- others 197 -
Finance expense:
- interest expense (24,803) (19,440)
- bank charges (4,689) (227)
Amortisation for
- intangible asset (273) (256)
- land use rights (747) (692)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (9,867) (7,569)
Allowance for receivables (1,373) (967)
Allowance for inventories obsolescence (2,260) -
Intangible assets written off (28) -
Property, plant and equipment written off (521) (217)
Professional fees (3,150) -
Employee benefits expense
- Short-term employee benefits (26,380) (17,680)
- Contributions to defined contribution plan (2,335) (1,870)
Consultancy fees (6,085) (5,391)
Freight charges (9,461) (10,974)
Regulatory fees (3,381) (3,673)
Travelling expenses (3,291) (3,292)
Advertising expenses (2,878) (5,343)
Entertainment expenses (4,875) (5,228)
Amortisation of deferred capital grant 1,130 212
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6. Taxation
€) Major components of income tax expense
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Current tax
- current year 34,981 33,993
Deferred tax
- current year 367 (317)
- effect of change in tax rate - 786
35,348 34,462

The reconciliation of the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied
by the applicable corporate tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2008 is as
follows :-

Profit before taxation 127,835 96,092

Tax at domestic rates applicable to
results in the countries where the

Group operates 31,991 31,711
Income not subject to tax (265) -
Effect of deductible temporary

differences not recognised 916 -
Effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purposes 1,806 1,965
Change in tax rate - 786
Withholding tax on profit appropriation 900 —

Income tax expense recognised in

the profit and loss account 35,348 34,462

The tax rates used in computing taxes for entities incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China was 25% (2007:33%) for the financial year ended 31 December
2008. The effects of the change in tax rates used to compute deferred taxation
have been taken up in the financial year ended 31 December 2007 as the change
has been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for
each national jurisdiction.
7. Earnings per share
Earnings per share information have not been disclosed as the directors are of the view

that it is not meaningful to present the earnings per share based on the number of shares of
the Company as at balance sheet date.
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8.

Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost

At 1 January 2007
Additions
Transfers

Write off

At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Transfers

Disposals

Write off

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
Charge for the year

Disposals

Write off

At 31 December 2008
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2008

Machinery and Motor Office Construction-
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in-progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
35,047 46,824 2,277 2,633 3,602 90,383
40 8,485 1,394 1,570 9,864 21,353
3,643 - - - (3,643) -
(217) - - - - (217)
38,513 55,309 3,671 4,203 9,823 111,519
765 15,239 410 998 4,064 21,476
- - - 32 - 32
10,002 3,620 - - (13,622) -
(39) - - - - (39)
- (635) - (96) - (731)
49,241 73,533 4,081 5,137 265 132,257
2,563 9,218 457 874 - 13,112
1,765 4,637 575 592 - 7,569
4,328 13,855 1,032 1,466 - 20,681
2,164 6,148 661 894 - 9,867
Q) - - - - (7)
- (139) - (71) - (210)
6,485 19,864 1,693 2,289 - 30,331
34,185 41,454 2,639 2,737 9,823 90,838
42,756 53,669 2,388 2,848 265 101,926
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8. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Certain machinery and equipment are pledged to secure bank loans amounting to RMB 11
million (2007 : RMB 2 million) for the financial year ended 31 December 2008. Information
regarding bank loans are disclosed in Note 18 (Loans and borrowings).

9. Intangible assets
Group
Software
RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007, 1 January 2008 2,560
Additions 400
Write off (28)
At 31 December 2008 2,932
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2007 59
Amortisation for the year 256
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 315
Amortisation for the year 273
At 31 December 2008 588
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 2,245
At 31 December 2008 2,344

Software has an estimated average remaining amortisation period of 8 years as at end of
the latest financial year. The amortisation of software costs is included in the
“Administrative expenses” line in the profit and loss account.
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10.

11.

Land use rights

Cost

At 1 January
Addition
Disposal

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January

Amortisation for the year
Disposal

At 31 December

Net carrying amount

Amount to be amortised
Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than

five years
Later than five years

The Group has land use rights over four plots of state-owned land in the PRC where the
Group’s operating facilities reside. The land use rights have remaining tenures ranging from
44 years to 48 years as at 31 December 2008.

The Group’s land use rights and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB 74,055,000

Group
2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB’000
40,190 26,780
- 13,410

(5,246) -
34,944 40,190
2,494 1,802
747 692

(367) -
2,874 2,494
32,070 37,696
699 804
2,796 3,216
28,575 33,676
32,070 37,696

(2007: RMB 61,608,000) are mortgaged to secure the Group’s bank loans (Note 18).

The amortisation of land use rights is included in the “Administrative expenses” line in the

profit and loss account.

Investment in an associate

Unquoted equity shares, at cost

At 1 January

Transfer to investment in subsidiary

At 31 December

28

4,095
(4,095)

4,095

4,095
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11.

12.

Investment in an associate (cont’d)

Country of
Name incorporation and Equity interest
Principal activities place of business held
2008 2007
% %
Wuxi Shen Huan Manufacture and sale of People’'s Republic 100  20.5
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. wire, cable and related of China

products (Dormant in 2007)

On 22 January 2008, the Group acquired an additional 31.7% equity interest in Wuxi Shen
Huan Manufacturing Co., Ltd and it became a subsidiary of the Company upon acquisition.
On 22 April 2008, the Group acquired the remaining equity interest of 47.8% in Wuxi Shen
Huan Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Further details of the acquisition are set out in Note 28 to the
financial statements.

The summarised financial information of the associate is as follows:

2007
RMB’000
Assets and liabilities:
Total assets 20,000
Inventories
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Raw materials 11,962 9,164
Work-in-progress 15,124 16,922
Finished goods 33,981 93,118
Spares and consumables 642 578
61,709 119,782
Allowance for inventories obsolescence (2,260) -
59,449 119,782
Inventories recognised as an expense in
cost of sales 1,160,715 904,682

Inventories pledged to a bank 57,765 -
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13. Prepayments

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Advances to suppliers 33,045 27,752
Advances to employees 3,340 3,410
36,385 31,162

Advances to suppliers relate to advance payments made to suppliers for the purchase of
raw materials.

Advances to employees relate to amounts paid to and held by employees to be incurred for
travel related expenses. These advances are repayable on demand.

14, Amount due from minority interests
Amount due from minority interests is non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on
demand.

15. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables (current):

Trade receivables 368,555 251,853
Bills of exchange and promissory notes 4,666 3,443
Loans to third parties - 62,258
Refundable deposits 3,042 3,884
376,263 321,438
Trade receivables (non-current) 4,658 5,410
Total trade and other receivables (current
and non-current) 380,921 326,848
Add:
Cash and bank balances (Note 16(a)) 88,436 51,275
Amount due from minority interest - 7,900
Total loans and receivables 469,357 386,023
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15.

Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 90 days’ terms. They
are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial

recognition.

As at 31 December 2008, retention sum included in trade receivables, amounted to RMB
36,128,000 (2007 : RMB 26,803,000).

Bills of exchange and promissory notes

These receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally transferred to pay off trade
creditors.

Loans to third parties

Loans to third parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing, with maturity dates less than 1
year and are to be settled in cash. Loans to third parties have been fully settled in financial
year ended 31 December 2008.

Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits refer to tender deposits the Group has placed with potential customers
or agents engaged as middle persons to bid in upcoming projects. These deposits are
refunded once the tendering is over.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has trade receivables that are past due at the balance
sheet date but not impaired, amounting to RMB346,814,000 (2007 : RMB 240,288,000).
These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the balance sheet date
is as follows :

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables past due:
Lesser than 90 days 246,310 134,167
90 to 180 days 39,944 46,827
181 to 365 days 32,762 32,197
1to 2 years 26,090 26,376
More than 2 years 1,708 721
346,814 240,288
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15.

16.

Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

Receivables that are impaired

The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the balance sheet date and the
movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Collectively impaired

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables — nominal amounts 37,599 26,803
Less: Allowance for impairment (11,200) (9,828)
26,399 16,975
Movement in allowance accounts:
At 1 January 9,828 8,861
Charge for the year written off 1,372 967
At 31 December 11,200 9,828

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the balance sheet date
relate to debts that are subject to uncertainty on their recoverability. These receivables are
not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and bank balances comprise :
Group Company
2008 2007 2008

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Long term deposits 1,300 1,300 -

Short term deposits, secured 2,115 50 -

Managed funds - 1,300 —

Cash on hand and at bank 85,021 48,625 286

Cash and bank balances 88,436 51,275 286
Less:

Long term deposits (1,300) (1,300) -

Short term deposits, secured (2,115) (50) -

Managed funds - (1,300) -

Cash and cash equivalents 85,021 48,625 286

Cash and bank balances are made up of current and non-current balances as

follows :
Non-current 1,300 2,600 —
Current 87,136 48,675 286

88,436 51,275 286

Managed funds represent long-term investments that are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

- 32 -
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16. Cash and bank balances (cont’'d)
(@) Cash and bank balances comprise (cont'd) :

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between three months and one

year.
Group
2008 2007
Interest rates on short-term deposits 0.36% to 0.72% to
(per annum) 1.98% 3.78%
(b) Cash flow from operating activities :-
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit before taxation 127,835 96,092
Adjustments for:-
Amortisation of intangible asset
and land use rights 1,020 948
Amortisation of deferred capital grants (1,130) (212)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9,867 7,569
Allowance for receivables 1,373 967
Allowance for inventories obsolescence 2,260 -
Intangible asset written off 28 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 521 217
Gain from disposal of property,
plant and equipment (7 -
Interest income (305) (265)
Interest expense 24,803 19,440
Operating profit before changes in working capital 166,265 124,756
17. Trade and other payables
Group Company
2008 2007 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables 71,424 63,934 -
Advances from customers 41,175 22,764 -
Other payables 2,712 6,794 -
Total trade and other payables 115,311 93,492 -
Add:
Accrued operating expenses 13,301 3,625 1,093
Loans and borrowings (Note 18) 269,700 350,000 -
Amount due to an associate (Note 19) - 19,900 -
Amount due to a director (Note 20) 70,000 - -
Shareholder’s loan (Note 22) 1,028 - -
Total financial liabilities carried at
amortised cost 469,340 467,017 1,093
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17. Trade and other payables (cont’d)

Trade and other payables are unsecured and non-interest bearing. Trade payables are
normally settled on 60-day terms while other payables have an average term of six months.

18. Loans and borrowings
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fixed rate bank loans 259,700 250,000
Floating rate bank loans 10,000 90,000
Loans from third parties - 10,000
269,700 350,000
The effective interest rates of loans and borrowings are as follow :-
2008 2007
Fixed rate bank loans 5.48% to 5.33% to
8.22% 8.07%
Floating rate bank loans 5.54% to 6.14% to
7.88% 8.22%

Fixed rate and floating rate of bank loans have various maturity dates till:

Fixed rate bank loans 29 Oct 2009 26 Sep 2008
Floating rate bank loans 24 Jan 2009 19 Sep 2008

Fixed rate bank loans

These loans are secured by a charge over land use rights and buildings, inventories and
plant and machineries issued and/or guarantees by following :-.

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Third parties 29,500 -
Directors of the Company and subsidiaries 2,000 -
Third parties and directors of the
Company and subsidiaries 104,000 64,000
Third parties, directors of the
Company and a related party 17,700 -
153,200 64,000

Floating rate bank loans
These following loans and borrowings are secured by guarantees from :-

Third parties 10,000 -
Third parties and directors - 53,000

10,000 53,000
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Loans from third parties

Loans from third parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.
Loans from third parties have been fully settled in the financial year ended 31 December
2008.

Amount due to an associate

Amount due to an associate is non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a director

Amount due to a director is non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Deferred capital grants

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Capital grant received 1,580 1,320
Accumulated amortisation (1,342) (212)
Net carrying amount 238 1,108
Amortisation during the year 1,130 212

Deferred capital grants relate to government grants received for expenditure on research
and development activities undertaken by the Group’s subsidiary in People’s Republic of
China to promote technology advancement and transfer. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

Shareholders’ loans

Loans from shareholders are mandatorily converted upon successful public offering of the
Company’s shares. The loans from shareholders are interest free, unsecured, with no
fixed term of repayment and are denominated in Singapore Dollars (SGD).

Included in shareholders’ loans is RMB 1,028,000 interest free loan which will be repaid
after the public offering of the Company’s shares and when the cash flow of the Company
permits.
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23.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as at 31 December relates to the following:

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Allowance for doubtful debt 2,424 2,456
Allowance for inventories obsolescence 565 -
2,989 2,456
Unappropriated profits (900) -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxation authority.

On 22 February 2008, the State Administration of Taxation of China issued a circular
Caishui [2008] No. 001, which states that distribution of dividends after 1 January from pre-
2008 profits will be exempt from withholding tax on distribution to foreign investors. As a
result, there should be no deferred tax liabilities arising from undistributed profits of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries accumulated up till 31 December 2007. Provision for deferred
tax liabilities, however, would be required to the extent per FRS 12.39 on profits
accumulated from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the
following temporary difference:

Tax losses 916 -

This deferred tax asset has not been recognized as it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the relevant subsidiary companies can utilize the
benefits.

The use and availability of these tax losses are subject to the agreement of the tax
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective
countries in which the subsidiaries operate.

Unrecognised temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries:

As at 31 December 2008, no deferred tax liability has been recognised for withholding tax
that would be payable on certain undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries as the
Group has determined that portion of the undistributed earnings of its PRC subsidiaries will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. Such temporary difference for which no
deferred tax has been recognised aggregate to approximately RMB 72,000,000 and the
deferred tax liability is estimated at approximately RMB 3,600,000.
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24.

25.

26.

Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 26 May 2008 with 1,000 fully paid-up shares of $1,000,
approximating RMB 5,000. There were no movements in the number of ordinary shares or
share capital since its incorporation. The share capital for the financial year ended 31
December 2007 relates to the paid-in capital of Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co. Ltd.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by
the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

Other reserves
Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the law applicable to the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the
subsidiaries are required to make appropriation to a Statutory Reserve Fund (SRF). At least
10% of the statutory after tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until the cumulative
total of the SRF reaches 50% of the respective subsidiaries’ registered capital. Subject to
approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may be used to offset any
accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not
available for dividend distribution to shareholders.

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 13,315 6,946
Transferred from accumulated profits 10,493 6,369
At 31 December 23,808 13,315

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the share
capital of a subsidiary restructured under common control.

Convertible loans

The convertible loans are converted to new ordinary shares of the Company at the options
of the Company or mandatorily converted to new ordinary shares upon registration of the
prospectus of the Company with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. The conversion
terms include agreed conversion formulae between the Company and the convertible loan
holders.

The Convertible Loans are secured by the personal guarantees of the Executive Chairman
of Wuxi Hu An Cable Co., Ltd and the guarantor, as well as, shares held by the guarantor
pledged.

The convertible loans are interest-free, with no fixed terms of repayment and net of
issuance fees of approximately RMB 2,281,000.
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27. Dividends

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Dividends declared and paid during the financial year 55,000 35,000
28. Acquisition of subsidiaries
(a) Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

On 22 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, Wuxi Hu An Wire and
Cable Co., Ltd. (HAWC) acquired an additional 31.7% equity interest in its 20.5%-
owned associate, Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (WSCM). Upon
the acquisition, WSCM became a subsidiary of the Group.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of WSCM as at the date of
acquisition were:

Recognised on Carrying amount
date of acquisition before combination

RMB’000 RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment 32 32
Trade and other receivables 19,804 19,804
Cash and cash equivalents 181 181
20,017 20,017

Trade and other payables a7 an
Net identifiable assets 20,000 20,000

Total cost of business combination

The total cost of the business combination is as follows:

RMB’000
Consideration for 20.5% equity interest previously held: 4,095
Consideration for acquisition of additional 31.7% equity
interest:
- Cash paid 6,345
10,440
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28.

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(cont'd)

The effect of acquisition on cash flows is as follows:

RMB’000

Total consideration for 31.7% equity interest acquired settled
in cash 6,345
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired (181)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 6,164

Acquisition of minority interests

On 22 April 2008, HAWC acquired the remaining 47.8% equity interest in WSCM
from its minority interests for a total consideration of approximately RMB 9,560,000.
As a result of this acquisition, WSCM became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC.
On the date of acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was
approximately RMB 9,560,000.

Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd.

On 22 February 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired 100%
equity interest in Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd. (WHCR) from its
minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 100,000. As a result of this
acquisition, WHCR became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On the date of
acquisition, the book value of the interest acquired was approximately RMB
100,000, which comprised only cash balance. Therefore, there was no net cash
outflow from this acquisition.

Acquisition of minority interests — Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd.

On 23 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired the
remaining 40% equity interest in Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd. (WSC)
from its minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 8,000,000. As a result of
this acquisition, WSC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On the date of
acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was approximately
RMB 8,000,000. The purchase consideration was set off against the amount due
from minority interests of RMB 7,900,000 and the net cash outflow was
RMB100,000.

Acquisition of minority interests — Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminium Industry Co.,
Ltd.

On 23 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired the
remaining 0.5% equity interest in Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminium Industry Co., Ltd.
(WSA) from its minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 100,000. As a
result of this acquisition, WSA became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On
the date of acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was
approximately RMB 100,000.
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29.

30.

Segment reporting
Business segment

The business segment reporting format is not presented as the Group only has one
business segment. The Group is in the business of manufacturing and selling wire and
cable-related products which are of similar nature and provide the Group with similar risks
and returns.  For this reason, the management and the directors are of the opinion that the
Group only has one business segment.

Geographical segment
The geographical segment reporting format is not presented as the Group only has one
geographical segment. All sales are transacted in the PRC which provide the Group with
similar risks and returns. For this reason, the management and the directors are of the
opinion that the Group only has one geographical segment.
Commitments
(@) Operating lease commitments

As at the balance sheet dates, the Group had the following minimum lease

payments under operating leases on premises with initial or remaining term of one
year or more :-

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Non cancellable amounts payable
within 1 year 436 350
within 2 to 5 years 537 973
973 1,323

These operating leases are for a tenure of between 6 months to 3 years. Certain
leases include options to renew the leases after the expiry of the initial tenure.
Lease payments under these leases are usually fixed for the entire initial tenure.
There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

(b) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised
in the financial statements are as follows :-

Capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment 2,602 4,953

(c) Facility commitments

The Group has committed to business associates whereby both parties agree to
mutually provide advances up to RMB772 million (2007 : RMB 42 million) under
advances facilities as at 31 December 2008. Subsequent to 31 December 2008,
the advances facility agreements have been terminated.
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31. Related party disclosures

(@)

(b)

(©)

Sale and purchase of goods and services

An entity or individual is considered a related party of the Group for the purpose of
the financial statements if it possesses the ability (directly or indirectly) to control or
exercise significant influence over the operating and financial decisions of the
Group or vice versa or it is subject to common control or common significant
influence.

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following significant transactions between the Group and its related
parties took place on terms agreed between the parties:

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Costs
Purchase of goods from a
director related company - 564
Consulting fees paid to a director related company 315 -

The directors are of the opinion that all the transactions above have been entered
into in the normal course of business and have been established on terms and
conditions that are not materially different from those obtainable in transactions
with unrelated parties.

Compensation of directors and key management personnel

Short-term employee benefits paid to
key management personnel 2,211 298

Comprise amounts paid to:

- Directors of the Company 1,525 117
- Other key management personnel 686 181
2,211 298

Loans with related parties

Loan from an associate - 19,900

Loan from executive director 70,000 -

Loan from shareholders 1,028 -
71,028 19,900
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32.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2008.

As disclosed in Note 25, the subsidiaries of the Group are required by the Law of the PRC
to contribute to and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed capital
requirement has been complied with by the subsidiaries for the financial years ended 31
December 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, accrued operating expenses, amount due to an associate, amount due to a
director, shareholders’ loans, less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital includes
shareholders’ loans, convertible loans and equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the parent less the abovementioned restricted statutory reserve fund.

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loans and borrowings (Note 18) 269,700 350,000
Trade and other payables (Note 17) 115,311 93,492
Accrued operating expenses (Note 17) 13,301 3,625
Amount due to an associate (Note 19) - 19,900
Amount due to a director (Note 20) 70,000 -
Shareholders’ loans (Note 22) 1,028 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) (85,021) (48,625)
Net debt 384,319 418,392
Shareholders’ loans 116,568 -
Convertible loans 72,322 -
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent 31,637 186,346
Less: Statutory reserve (23,808) (13,315)
Total capital 196,719 173,031
Capital and net debt 581,038 591,423
Gearing ratio 66% 71%
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33.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of
these risks, which are executed by the management. It is, and has been throughout the
current and previous financial years, the Group’s policy that no derivatives shall be
undertaken.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other
financial assets (including investment securities and cash and cash equivalents, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Exposure to credit risk

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
recognised in the balance sheets.

Information regarding credit enhancements for trade and other receivables is
disclosed in Note 15.
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33. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the industry sector
profile of its trade receivables on an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration
profile of the Group’s trade at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2008 2007
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
State-owned companies 136,048 36 142,382 55
Non-state owned companies 237,165 64 114,881 45
373,213 100 257,263 100

The Group has approximately 17% (2007 : 19%) of trade receivables due from 5
major customers located in the PRC as at 31 December 2008 respectively.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy
debtors with good payment record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents and
investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or
entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings
and no history of default.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is
disclosed in Note 15 (Trade and other receivables).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.

The Group’s liquidity risk management policy is that to maintain sufficient liquid
financial assets and stand-by credit facilities with different banks and business
alliances. As at 31 December 2008, all of the Group’s loans and borrowings (Note
18) will mature in less than one year based on the carrying amount reflected in the
financial statements.
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33.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the balance sheet date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2007
One year Oneto Over
or less five years five years Total
Trade and other payables 93,492 - - 93,492
Accrued operating
expenses 3,625 - - 3,625
Loans and borrowings 350,000 - - 350,000
Amount due to an
associate 19,900 - - 19,900
467,017 - - 467,017
2008
One year Oneto Over
or less five years five years Total
Trade and other payables 115,311 - - 115,311
Accrued operating
expenses 13,301 - - 13,301
Loans and borrowings 269,700 - - 269,700
Amount due to a director 70,000 - - 70,000
Shareholders’ loans - 1,028 - 1,028
468,312 1,028 - 469,340

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’'s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and
borrowings. The Company’s loans at floating rate given to related parties form a
natural hedge for its non-current floating rate bank loan. All of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities at floating rates are contractually re-priced at intervals of less
than 12 months from the balance sheet date for all three financial years.

The Group’s policy is to manage interest costs using a mix of fixed and floating rate
debts taking into consideration the funding requirements of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

At 31 December 2008, if interest rates had been 100 basis points lower/higher for
the financial years with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit net of tax
would have been RMB 375,000 (2007 : RMB 737,000) higher/lower, arising mainly
as a result of lower/higher interest expense on floating rate loans and borrowings.
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33.

34.

35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(d) Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than
interest).

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Financial instruments whose carrying amount approximates fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
(current), advances to suppliers, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
accrued operating expenses and loans and borrowings based on their notional amounts,
reasonably approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature or are repriced
frequently.

Subsequent events

(@) On 27 April 2009, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share
capital by 25,000,000 ordinary shares via capitalisation of shareholders’ loan of
RMB 116,568,000.

(b) On 28 September 2009, the Company exercised its option to convert the
convertible loans to 12,454,000 fully paid up ordinary shares. On the same day,
the shareholders’ loans were also converted to 14,739,000 fully paid up ordinary
shares.

(c) On 27 October 2009, one of the shareholders entered into an Incentive Share
Transfer Agreement with certain officers of the Group (“officers”), pursuant to which
the shareholder transferred 17,550,000 shares (“Incentive Shares”) in aggregate of
the enlarged share capital of the Company at nil consideration.

Pursuant to the Incentive Shares Transfer Agreement, in consideration of the
transfer of the Incentive Shares to the officers, the officers shall:

0] hold his or her current appointment in the Group or and such other
appointments or positions in the Group as the Directors may deem advisable
from time to time up to and including 31 December 2012;

(ii) not dispose of or transfer or enter into any agreement that will directly or
indirectly constitute or will be deemed as a disposal of any part of the
Incentive Shares before 31 December 2012; and

(iii) transfer the Incentive Shares back to the shareholder for nil consideration
unless otherwise agreed by the shareholder at its sole discretion in the
event that they terminate their employment with the Group for any reason
whatsoever before 31 December 2012.

(d) On 31 December 2009, the Company sub-divided each issued and paid-up ordinary
share of the Company into 9 ordinary shares.

- 46 -
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36. Authorisation of financial statements

The audited combined financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 31 December 2009.
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L 3L
2009 2008

A B EF A Ao R A

3,971 4,654
4,544 305
440 -
2,259 ]
92 7
(18,596) (24,803)
(1,633) (4,689)
(297) (273)
(706) (747)
(11,860) (9,867)
(90) (1,372)
2,260 (2,260)

- (28)

(78) (521)
(3,247) (3,150)
(29,903) (26,380)
(2,609) (2,335)
(6,776) (6,085)
(8,367) (9,461)
(1,566) (3,381)
(2,543) (3,291)
(3,430) (2,878)
(8,677) (4,875)
238 1,130
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6 ST AR
(a) HFRE? L RPEATFN
> H
2009 2008
A B EF S A B EF S
“as,’? Hp (¥ JPL
- FER 30,853 34,981
YEaE T
- BER 163 367
T LS b K 1,196 -
32,212 35,348
(b) it Tl f Sl AN Y-

SRR A G EEE ) R 2000 £ 3 2008 % 127 3L p g 4 A7
7}%—; —\"“% ’ ,?J T4

*E W
2009 2008

A3 EGF S A3 EGF S

w1 5 165,804 127,835
&g H AR Iﬂ;% =N %1%“@%’.}_@]3‘;’% ﬁﬁ.f;"%;%‘i

m i 27,656 31,991

R IECRTEN - F et (80) -

AT (837) (265)

WRINT R AR I AL R 2 R 387 916

AT AR R f;‘ﬂc 890 1,806

{8 Sk s B 1,196 -

F AR e 2 e BARAR 3,000 900

FEZ PRI TERY 32,212 35,348

Wz EA AR foR2 4 A TP E R 2009 & 12 7 31 p 2 g E R
REE B L i 5 15%% 2506(2008 & & 1 2596) - * k3B ifar ot s L ®

“~

R Y g 2009 E ARG iR L gH o

PR et - B R TR 2 B A 0 R a A



P ERE FS EPIEE R AP

& B4R & 3L —2009 & 12 7 31 p

7. =R L3

A AT P E 32 5 j\ggi-&}iggli])@;/}ga% H}ié\i’i;*frj , n//;r,u g;i-_’&}iﬁpfgp\i
4o g T tagnid fth ;g»gis,f:gto

ﬁ,—ﬁ.& »;;;&éﬁﬁf,?g SE % A gng )i:?e[ﬁ]ﬁ%/»\ﬁ—’f‘u% a;g\is,tﬂ , l/%]‘jéta}ﬁ:l‘j’;)‘;ﬁi Btk
Fid et bR F Y T R AR R T 0 kP -

TR FORF B v E 0 p 5 2009 # £ 2008 & 12 7 31 p oz fE R A A FEEE L

B
*EME
2009 2008
R E A A P AR AT 30y Rk 216,530,310 9,000
ik
- TR E R O 154,726,865 337,086,000

371,257,175 337,095,000

A g R B BEA T R L2 R F] o s 0 SR % & 469,746,000 % K2 F LB 4D
X3 0284 7 (2008 £ 4 3% 0197 %) o
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8. BLFA(HE B 5% %K)
*EW

K
2008 # 17 1 p 4%
T

BEI AP

#5 %

B

4

2008 & 12 % 31 p 2 2009 # 17 1 p 4%F

FTH
# i
B
A

2009 # 12 * 31 p 43f

Al

2008 & 1 7 1 p 4p3f
¥ E RIS

e

w4

2008 = 12 % 31 p 2 2009 # 1% 1 p 4%F

¥ E R
Jo
- |

2009 & 12 * 31 p 43F
AW T A

2008 # 12 * 31 p
2009 # 12 *» 31 p

Z R BFoRE TRHLIE ARG Al A S
AR ERF AR ERF - R AT W e A8 EF S A5 HRF S
38,513 55,309 3,671 4,203 9,823 111,519
765 15,239 410 998 4,064 21,476

- - - 32 - 32
10,002 3,620 - - (13,622) -
(39) - - - - (39)
- (635) - (96) - (731)
49,241 73,533 4,081 5,137 265 132,257
76 2,160 910 281 26,612 30,039
25,999 878 - - (26,877) -
- - (360) - - (360)
- (110) - (59) - (169)
75,316 76,461 4,631 5,359 - 161,767
4,328 13,855 1,032 1,466 - 20,681
2,164 6,148 661 894 - 9,867
™ - - - - ()
- (139) - (71) - (210)
6,485 19,864 1,693 2,289 - 30,331
2,930 7,176 815 939 - 11,860
- - (342) - - (342)
- (34) - (57) - (91)
9,415 27,006 2,166 3,171 - 41,758
42,756 53,669 2,388 2,848 265 101,926
65,901 49,455 2,465 2,188 - 120,009

27 -



P ERE FS EPIEE R AP

& B4R & 3L —2009 & 12 7 31 p

8. ALFA(MA - B s 2 R %))

HRABBELE C R F TR 0 FL A A L% 1300 § A (2008 # A& ¢ 4 % 1100 § )z &

(7R R o 4T B AL AP M T 0 T 3 17(1 #)

A
*EE
"

A8 HiF S
= N
2008 # 1 % 1 p &% 2,560
F7 5 400
e (28)
2008 # 12 % 31 p ~2009 % 17 1 p 4%f 2,932
375 311
2009 & 12 * 31 p 4%F 3,243
B
2008 & 17 1 p4k3F 315
¥R s 273
2008 & 12 * 31 p ~2009 & 1 * 1 p 4%F 588
¥ R 297
2009 & 12 * 31 p 43F 885
G E
2008 & 12 ' 31 p 4%F 2,344
2009 & 12 7 31 p 4830 2,358

£ 32009 # 12 % 31 p 5k > AR T iof|hdrsl = el 8 £(2008 £ 19 &) o HrAg e
Rl e P hAFE AL TERE Y AT



P ERE FS EPIEE R AP

LEHHABEEFIL—2009 # 12 % 31 p

10. T
~EW
2009 2008
A g B A A g B A

= A
1% 1p4gf 34,944 40,190
12 % 31 p 4% 34,944 34,944
kRt %
1% 1p4%f 2,874 2,494
T E R e 706 147
E - (367)
12 * 31 p 4%F 3,580 2,874
EE & I} iR 31,364 32,070
Farsl R
- F 1 R 699 699
- EN T EUP 2,796 2,796
I EE 27,869 28,575

31,364 32,070

AEBFER TR 2 W e MG A2 R R 32 e R ES T 2009
£ 12 315;i*i]fﬁﬁ"’?43ﬁ447ﬁ(2008ﬁ 44 & 3 48 )% X -

*EM|2tER i E 5 A AR 67,190,000 (2008 &£ B 1 A A% 74,055,000 )t o ¥ jER
Li":jﬁ;f;' > @ ?'(r:f“ i B 7q ‘r}\—\#{“g‘( l']‘p__17)

2R 0 BRAPYE AT E A TP T o
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1. £PHEF—327
2
2009 2008

A g B A A og B A
AP HORG o Fd A 261,641 192,201

RIFZ B

H ER -3 & F T a (%)
2009 2008

#Fqa7
APV ETTRTFEF L AAHLTR-THTA)E A ¢ EAESR 100%  100%
2P @ WA &
BFRTTHITRTH
FRAFHESF
B RTHUS T ZAMETA MR ) A ¢ FL A KIoR 100%  100%
ap @ B A
AGH Y A AT A AHLHNE PHAS P EALAL{e® 100%  100%
M
AT Y REEEF U P LA LERE PHA S P EALAL{eR 100%  100%
&)
E2HF Y RTHFAE Y FIRFIR - -THZHMAS P EALAAX{c® 100% 100%
4\:;(1) (El"ﬂ_l’ﬁ%*/'é,))

12. CA3

Rl =R
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=

5

BT E RS

WA B M S AL E

K1 REFZGHEH

30

*3M

2009 2008
A8 HGF S A8 HGF S
42,002 11,962
62,264 15,124
66,121 33,981
815 642
171,202 61,709
- (2,260)
171,202 59,449
1,129,736 1,160,715
63,000 57,765
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13. TF 1 #IE
*E® Ao
2009 2008 2009 2008
AR EE R E: N AR EE R P N
TR BT AR 28,039 33,045 - -
AR AE 963 3,340 - -
R 3,479 - 3,479 -
32,481 36,385 3,479 -
AT AE GIEAL S BT Y R Rl K
FHRAIAAGRIAAT B RHAA L mppM P * Fd R RF 2400 - L ERH AR
W PR RpEEE
FEHE M2 I ERFR AP 2009 £ 120 3L p B FRERSILFBE T A .
14. Btk i 2 # Rojeix
*EH ADP
2009 2008 2009 2008
O N S O N S O N S O N S
Bjetk o B i (nd)
R YR 2 351,655 368,555 - -
el & 3% 3,060 4,666 - -
FhiRws 5,905 3,042 - -
HE iz —F 27 - - 57,000 -
360,620 376,263 57,000 -
Je e 2o (2him $) 5,861 4,658 - -
Blete 3 2 6 At & P (in b
3 ZLinds) 366,481 380,921 57,000 -
v L R E
(22 15(a)) - 1,300 - -
REZ29ERE
(3 15(a)) 168,679 85,021 429 286
2R 5 AT
(32 15(a)) - 2,115 - -
RN L & o 535,160 469,357 57,429 286

B T 2

T T hE 2 B AR AR
ZE RdsinslEL 2T FE o

#£22000 & 127 31 p B -

2, % 36,128,000 =)

CHRIRHP UL R 7 3

THE Y 2

90 = o fiifTtE i

Gl R L £ FEAME > &

T A A% 5 A A% 61,840,000 < (2008 & Bt A
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VR T S ERTY RENE )
R EH

PERHEALF S FHLET > UK EHEL A LB FREL

'm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%$%agﬁ’éﬁéﬂ@&iﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’uﬁ%%éﬁ

H Wt —F 27 g P8P~ F G 0 TR KR
kAT RPN AT
7

ABEBA T 2009 £ 12 7 3L p L NFAL G AP APEL he G & AR T ARIR
fiz RefctEE A3 5 4 %% 306,643,000 m(zoos ER A% 346,814,000 &) o gt E e

S~

FEBAGHEFR T AL F AP 2RSS F AT

*E®
2009 2008
A8 EGF S A8 EGF S

W etk Ak

90 p T 173,071 246,310
90 = 180 F 60,334 39,944
181 % 365 p 38,756 32,762
132= 30,861 26,090
2 &0t 3,621 1,708

306,643 346,814

ES T Y

*EEF A ﬁw%ﬂb'? FAAR B 2 jetE 4 0 2 P 2N R T AR L 2 B 4SE 2
BRI 4o T Ao

*EF

2009 2008
AR B A A g B A

BefctEF— 4B & 3F 61,840 37,599

BoRRT AR (11,290) (11,200)
50,550 26,399

W ARE S g

19 1p 4% 11,200 9,828

12 % 31 p 43 11,290 11,200
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14.

15.

Refete i 2 # Reii (W)

FALFLP ORTLLETA %ﬁ#ﬁl%ﬁ@ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂﬁ?#ilﬁiﬁiwﬁoﬁ
SR AN E RN DA R R

{ EF F A
*EH A7
2009 2008 2009 2008
A8 R R A R R A R R A8 R R
R [N TN - 1,300 - -

RERREGHFHETATITARE T FELEPRT -
%

Ri2 NERE

*EW rap
2009 2008 2009 2008

LA M A AR A LR REFA A RREA

B2 L3R4

168,679 85,021 429 286
BT AR P ARE SRR S R
*EH
2009 2008
07 5 et ) (& 41 F) 0.36% 0.36%
‘EHP A FE A
*E W 227
2009 2008 2009 2008

AR EAE A AR BFA AR MFAL AR A

ERRETECE IR - 2,115 - -

%

EHFHEZBII-FEFE

AEH
2009 2008

B EAIF(E E) 0.36% 0.36%
I 1.98% T 1.98%




P ERE FS EPIEE R AP

LEHHABEEFIL—2009 # 12 % 31 p

15.

16.

B4 21 87 ()

(b)  HEEHREE

*EE
2009 2008
A og B A Aog B A
Fran R 165,804 127,835
Nk
BAF AL P R 1,003 1,020
VEat At B B s (238) (1,130)
A~ s 2 RKFITE 11,860 9,867
%5 bR 90 1,373
BIE f R AT A (2,260) 2,260
BAFT A S - 28
PAA ~ R s B3R v 78 521
PAA ~ Bus B3R & s 17 (92) (7
FlA T~ (4,544) (305)
flag 18,596 24,803
FEFT &RE D LR 190,297 166,265
) MRS BT E
A2 A28
2009 2008 2009 2008
/\i‘ﬁ‘,‘;fkf«!f;b /\i‘ﬁ‘,‘;fkf«!f;b /\i‘ﬁ‘,‘;fkf«!f;b /\i‘ﬁ‘,‘;fkf«!f;b
BRI 6 kA
& & 3% 72,921 71,424 - -
?FTi? S 48,922 41,175 - -
S NS E 4,399 2,712 1,598 -
FLEE & fede AR AR
3,000 - - -
B faids—3 o9 . . 4,903 -
BertEire Hw s H s ik 129,242 115,311 6,501 -
E
g ER 12,508 13,301 403 1,093
g A (i3 17) 317,000 269,700 - -
ﬁu@ﬁ;—%iuﬁiw) - 70,000 - -
L 2 (3 20) - 1,028 - -
s R A MR Epk A3 8 458,750 469,340 6,904 1,093

edtEE e ARG RREFSE I LR - BHEET F 52 60 YA G
+.

E
mHE RN ZERDBEIEL B o

- 34
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17.

18.

W
2009 2008
A g B A A og B A
B A F T A 240,300 259,700
B 54T AR 76,700 10,000
317,000 269,700

2009 2008
EEEIET R 510% I  548% I
5.84% 8.22%
1% R A 530% I  554% I
5.80% 7.88%
HEfl5 2 35 4HET T3R5 p
2010 & 2009 &
=) ¥ AR 1T R _JT'A
AT AR 129289 107 29 p
2010 & 2009 &

117 17 p 17 24¢p

AL 4 3

PEEEGIRR IR R BEEAS G ERI I RER Y RAERE A GET A
g;gg;.’,m:
~EE

2009 2008
A8 EiF S A8 HGF S

>
>

= A 2,500 29,500
AXPE32PFE . 2,000
sn = 4z £ 2z 308 Ei 197,800 1041000
R ANARNPEEEMGLEE - 17,700

200,300 153,200
B F 42
FPEEEGD TAHALCRERES UEF
A 46,000 -
N 13,000 10,000
LL.E‘ Lz E‘—i 17,700 -
76,700 10,000

W

CRA T A GH R G SR e AT

- 35 -



¢ Rk

EEE USRS

& B4R & 3L —2009 & 12 7 31 p

19.

20.

21.

Bt FRA B
W

2009 2008

A g B A A g B A
© T E A AR 1,580 1,580
B AR sl (1,580) (1,342)
EIER T A - 238
¥ E R i 238 1,130

“&F AP EGEAEBREN? EAAERL S 2P Ly HEEER L ﬂ’.»]tB&,}’z)ﬁ—
B RGEH I B RS - L E R R A AL EEA NG FE
LS NLF

BAEBREZWALSPRFIAOFFEFLS RENR L R EF R - A EHRGES
S RBEEZFTCREZDP L P GBUATAER ﬁGm&¢7%ﬁ

32009 £ 4 7 27 p oo o @A R 116,568,000 etk L AR AL 0 MW TR R L
4 i1 %595 A~ 25,000,000 3% o

FRAMA BRI T 24 AR 1,028,000 kA LA EeAtE RPN FER o

I
F_L

Rt @ RTRE

£ 3 12”31H1~1L1,\&,b1“7;5'7fm )?}’/(él;u) =T

L
2009 2008
AR ERF AR ERF
B R 1,630 2,424
B FRANA - 565
1,630 2,989
A B (900) (900)

Bt AR T AL RS E R F o FL PRSI RT AR DT E R G s
AR 2 R AR RIS M T 3 s
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21.

22.

Bt B RFT AL F ()

¢RI AR R Y 2008 & 2 7 22 p o * 2 B4 4=[2008] 001 HLid Aro Rt 10 1 p fSpR
w2 2008 & & a2 imq)] ?*?ﬁ»’fﬂﬁ‘% R A e A 0 T A ALY R
+aoPf 1 2007 & 12 7 31 p RAfL AL ERTIE > B2 6 A2 :@m%’;ﬂﬁ,ﬁ Fooiw & i
:}7‘;#?4 v AR L R 1239 2 R € 2008 £ 1 0 1 p 2 i8R A JUE > LRI AT
Ff oo

AP RRTIFLE > A AT A ]

*EH
2009 2008
A8 EF A A8 HF A
JE AR drds 1,613 916
B SR IR (274) -

AAFAEHSTP IR ERTA > FIL S 20 ART AR EHARL ATE

PEBR IS EAT AL EPHEL > 2T EY A LVEY M, 2 gAI I 00y
T b B2 AT IR R £ e TR AR T .

/ﬁé

8

e
=

FF PG M2 ARIEE LR

#32009# 127 31 p 50k 0 ¢ BEAAL R F 2P L BETALRIFFLT AL HL A0
LR > X AR ERE o TR ARRRL P FL AL feRIF 2P e
AL B2 gNTAIELZ A RBEFAF o 2 E AR TR LR
e &3t A AR 136,000,000 & 0 @ dRaE TR ARE G B3R A 4 A 6,800,000 & o

LS
AEME AL
2009 2008
A8 EGF S A8 HiF S

2009 # 1 " 1 p 4k3p

1,000(2008 # : )ik § & % 5 -
> P I pF e (2008 E 0 1,000) 0% i ik - 5
7F *h 4 {7 14,739,000(2008 # : )ik ik 69,440 -
B T T A

12,454,000(2008 # : )%k F & % 72,322 -
# o R L AR

25,000,000(2008 # : j& )% ¥ i@ % 116,568 -

45;_3 i af‘A,\*]- 9 "L

417,552,000(2008 : & )% & i % - -
12 7 31 p &%

469,746,000(2008 : 1,000) %% 4 id "% 258,335 5
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23.
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¥
E
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36
'z‘ ﬁ”%éfﬁ

i Py i *“7“3@1" B+ o2 BRE S F 200 P REE LZRSHEORF) > @ ft%}%#ﬁfé
PEARRFEREREER RT3 ’%@i&?@ 109g % fm,w} #3 SRF> 2 & SRF
FAERIEAPH 2 P3Ep Fek A 509 5 b o SRF @20B-iF ¢ F A | K e —ggwﬁg =
T oo o G T e RS SR 2P 23 Feiih > i SRFE 2 (B s fe ]S %
L o

|
2009 2008
A5 EF R A5 EF R

17 1p &% 23,808 13,315
BAEP R E 14,127 10,493
12 1 31 p 4% 37,935 23,808
L

EHER G A HZHE M E BRI TERE R 3 2P RAF DL B o

A

FHEERE AP EREHIALPIF ALY LR AN AP R AT H ARE LA
FHACPOBRBEP IR RPEBEHIATFFLL AR BHERIRASTEVEEY R
FiARL2ERELN

THREBRGUAST EZTRATHT VL IRFETTAABALERL > 1 E D FEAR
LRSS CACE X o

TEEERGEREL AR UREYT P EFEE Y 95 4 A 2,281,000 © -

2009 & 9 " 28 p > ik g A 5 12,454,000 %5 > BRI H R o
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25.

26.

!};e’,.l]

*EH
2009 2008

AR B A A g B A
eV ERY Sy L rgar - 55,000
A p 2 2009 &£ 12 * 31 p 2 g LR CE A AT 1.00 A (A R 4.86 4)2
chEAA(E L RVRF St EFERK T PEARAL LG ARSI FERA P ER
g’f":ﬁl °
2

BH 27— g #F7 O EPFHEF 227

2008 # 17 22 p > ARM2 3P A AL TRTET L2 2 (HAWC)Z 7 1
e 205%WAEZ M A EEH Y BT HEUL \?(WSCM).H'J%‘E?’P 31.7%%
oo NP ES  WSCM T2 4 A BBz 3 07 o

WSCM *+ S PP 2 PFRLF AL L G TR E > 77 40T

Hppp 2T HE EHM2ER §E
AR EF AR EF
E}Ir’i‘f&iié&% 32 32
Tefetk e 2 B @ i ax 19,804 19,804
ez QERE 181 181
20,017 20,017
VRS REE RN (17) (17)
FIRRTAEL 20,000 20,000
EEEEHRF A
EELERAA AT 40T
A og B A
Lo 2 205% % T A 4,095
B2 LT ET A
- A2 A 6,345
10,440
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(b)

(©)

(d)

HREEHM AT E 2 BT

AR B A
TIIR & P~1E 31700 A 2 S Ak 6,345
BCEHBEF AOFBREZREE YERE (181)
&1 Eg—-i /'}‘ ﬁu $ ne -—| 6,164
B (B L g fE

2008 & 4 % 22 p > HAWC 4,1 #4 4 %% 9,560,000 ~ 3% WSCM > B3
4789% > 5t % W% 15 0 WSCM © & 5 HAWC #1 10093542 + 2 7 o & pp
PR EE AR MBS 0 ) 5 4 %% 9,560,000 & -

BT N7 —REF7 AT F A7

2008 £ 2 * 22 p > ﬂ\ﬁ:lﬁ]?‘ F 27 HAWC @ B8 g 455 3k % L ;A5 90 1D
(WHCR)100 %z #% 7# » 'Sy & B pr%k{s » WHCR ¢ %% HAWC #73 100% % i#
NP o BHphp B mwgdgm B 9% 4 R0 100,000 & o0 B R ERIEHES 0 F
o AEER L EERED

R TR

PG~ BT R EF A

2008 &# 1 * 23 p » 2 E @2 —12“ HAWC AT AR 4 A 8,000,000 & oo PR
BAPH Y R4 EF U2 (WSC) 2 gkt 40% 0 gt SR S WSC e 3 %
HAWC # 4 100% "% fg2 + 2 & o E&B BEGE R R G B 5 A R
8,000,000 ~ > T i 44 R OB 4 2R 7,900,000 & AR o EER AR
% A %% 100,000 ~ o

B e — KPR Y AR AT

2008 & 1% 23p > »E W2 QE” HAWC 2 4, % % 4 2% 100,000 » B~ 7 8 48
U R4FE G rTo P (WSA) 2 U Bk 0590 0 gt F % {5 > WSA @ & 3 HAWC
B4 100060 B2 3 NP o WP @I OREL ER & 0 5 5 4 2% 100,000

L o
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LEEAT  ABEPTBEASHAYENT £G4 BIP AT

(@ TRTHASNF W TR XH HHTH - FZTH BUTEEER
T LRLHAZA LT HF TR HRA L LR G R TR LT
ARZESH AFD - FATF XA o Fo7ser 2 K -

(D) 4FH3RF < PLpE R dF RAl > BB it s 1 foRdT A LA B E- A2 ATAR
e & -

(C) 4P & AP APMEFRM > BHEL S 1 foAJZ A 2 dEth i > Fh - r 2
FATRICTH -

B ¢ TR G R HAE R S SR R

@) THLHIF LAY
G~ EER CPEE TR HEEE -
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uﬁ;j 7w 28R ok
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SRR § TN SRR EE
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YEFF TR A %F;FT%%T’**ﬁ%&ﬁulkﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁigiﬁi
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2009 # 12 % 31 p

217.

17 g st

1) E (ks

FEuEL (F)

' *E®
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China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Directors’ report

The directors are pleased to present their report to the members together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2009.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Dai Zhi Xiang

Yeung Wai Wing

Liu Xue Wen (Appointed on 12 May 2009)
Toe Teow Heng (Appointed on 1 October 2009)
Wee Liang Hiam (Appointed on 28 October 2009)
Chen Timothy Teck Leng (Appointed on 28 October 2009)

@ Chen Teck Leng

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares, warrants and debentures

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the
register of directors’ shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Cap. 50, an interest in shares and warrants of the Company, as stated below:

Direct interest Deemed interest
At At
beginning of At end of beginning of At end of
Name of directors financial year financial year financial year financial year

The Company
Ordinary shares

Dai Zhi Xiang @ - - - 160,947,000
Yeung Wai Wing @ - - 1,000 196,713,000
Toe Teow Heng ®® - - - 112,086,000

1) Dragon Sea Power Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Dai Zhi Xiang, the CEO and Executive Chairman,
is deemed interested in the 160,947,000 Shares by virtue of his 100% shareholding interest held in Dragon Sea Power Limited.

) Goka Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI. Yeung Wai Wing, the Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chairman, is deemed
interested in the 196,713,000 Shares by virtue of his 100% shareholding interest held in Goka Limited.

3) Gemini Beta Inc. is a company incorporated in the BVI. Its sole shareholder is Gemini Asia Growth Il Inc., whose sole shareholder is ICH
Group Ltd., which is 26% owned by the Non-Executive Director, Toe Teow Heng. Gemini Asia Growth Il Inc. is a discretionary fund managed
by ICH Adviser Inc., which is 100% owned by ICH Group Ltd.. Toe Teow Heng is therefore deemed interested in the 55,098,000 Shares.

4) Zymmetry Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI. The Non-Executive Director, Toe Teow Heng, is deemed interested in
the 56,988,000 Shares by virtue of his 100% shareholding interest held in Zymmetry Investments Limited.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Directors’ report

Directors’ interests in shares, warrants and debentures (cont’d)

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year
and 21 January 2010. Save for, Yeung Wai Wing, is deemed interested in the 179,163,000 shares
by virtue of his 100% shareholding interest held in Goka Limited on 19 January 2010.

Except as disclosed in this report, no other director who held office at the end of the financial year
had interests in shares or warrants of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the
beginning of the financial year or at the end of the financial year.

Directors’ contractual benefits

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no
director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the
director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee performed the functions specified in the Companies Act. The functions
performed are detailed in the Report of Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 210B(5) of the Singapore
Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)’s Listing
Manual, the Best Practice Guide of the SGX-ST, and the Code of Corporate Governance 2005.

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Dai Zhi Xiang
Director

Liu Xue Wen
Director

15 April 2010
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China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Statement by Directors Pursuant to Section 201(15)

We, Dai Zhi Xiang and Liu Xue Wen, being two of the directors of China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd.,

do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors,

0] the accompanying balance sheets, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity, and consolidated cash flow statement together with the
notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2009, and the results of the business,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company

for the financial year ended on that date, and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will

be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Dai Zhi Xiang
Director

Liu Xue Wen
Director

15 April 2010



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Report From the Independent Auditors in relation to the

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd.
and its subsidiary companies

for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2009

To the members of China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of China Hu An Cable
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company” and formerly known as China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte. Ltd.) and its
subsidiary companies (collectively the “Group”) which comprises the balance sheets of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2009, and the statements of changes in equity of the Group
and the Company, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair profit and loss account and balance sheet and to maintain accountability
of assets; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Report From the Independent Auditors in relation to the

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd.
and its subsidiary companies

for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2009

Opinion
In our opinion,

0] the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of
changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2009 and the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date; and

(ii) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

15 April 2010



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December

2009
Note 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 4 1,372,406 1,385,331
Cost of sales (1,130,353) (1,165,636)
Gross profit 242,053 219,695
Other income 11,526 6,638
Selling and distribution expenses (32,821) (35,723)
Administrative expenses (34,696) (33,263)
Finance expenses (20,258) (29,512)
Profit before taxation 5 165,804 127,835
Taxation 6 (32,212) (35,348)
Profit representing total comprehensive income

attributable to equity holders of the Company 133,592 92,487
Earnings per share
Basic (RMB) 7 0.62 10,276.33
Diluted (RMB) 7 0.36 0.27

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2009

Group Company
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 120,009 101,926 - =
Intangible assets 9 2,358 2,344 - -
Land use rights 10 31,364 32,070 - -
Investment in a subsidiary 11 - - 261,641 192,201
Deferred tax assets 21 1,630 2,989 - -
Trade receivables 14 5,861 4,658 - -
Long term deposits 15 — 1,300 - —

161,222 145,287 261,641 192,201
Current assets
Inventories 12 171,202 59,449 - -
Prepayments 13 32,481 36,385 3,479 -
Trade and other receivables 14 360,620 376,263 57,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 168,679 85,021 429 286
Short term deposits, secured 15 - 2,115 - -

732,982 559,233 60,908 286
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 129,242 115,311 6,501 -
Accrued operating expenses 16 12,508 13,301 403 1,093
Loans and borrowings 17 317,000 269,700 - -
Amount due to a director 18 - 70,000 - -
Deferred capital grants 19 - 238 - -
Provision for taxation 10,995 13,515 - -

469,745 482,065 6,904 1,093
Net current assets/(liabilities) 263,237 77,168 54,004 (807)
Non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ loans 20 - (1,028) - (1,028)
Deferred tax liabilities 21 (900) (900) - -
Net assets 423,559 220,527 315,645 190,366
Equity attributable to equity

holders of the parent

Share capital 22 258,335 5 258,335 5
Revenue reserve 211,490 92,025 57,310 1,471
Statutory reserve 23 37,935 23,808 - -
Merger reserve 23 (84,201) (84,201) - -

423,559 31,637 315,645 1,476
Shareholders’ loans 20 - 116,568 - 116,568
Convertible loans 24 - 72,322 - 72,322
Total equity 423,559 220,527 315,645 190,366

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.




China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2009

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Statutory
Share Revenue reserve Merger Total Minority Shareholders’ Convertible
Note Capital reserve fund reserve  reserves Total interests loans loans Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Balance at 1 January 2008 108,000 65,031 13,315 - 78,346 186,346 8,100 - — 194,446
Profit representing total

comprehensive income for the year - 92,487 - - 92,487 92,487 - - - 92,487
Adjustment arising from Restructuring

Exercise (108,000) - — (84,201) (84,201) (192,201) - - - (192,201)
Issuance for ordinary shares 5 - - - - 5 - - - 5
Issuance of shareholders’ loans - - - - - - - 116,568 — 116,568
Issuance of convertible loans - - - - - - - - 72,322 72,322
Acquisition of minority interests - - - - - - (8,100) - - (8,100)
Transfer to statutory reserve fund — (10,493) 10,493 - - - - - - -
Dividends on ordinary shares 25 —  (55,000) - — (55,000) (55,000) - - —  (55,000)
Balance at 31 December 2008 5 92,025 23,808 (84,201) 31,632 31,637 - 116,568 72,322 220,527
Profit representing total

comprehensive income for the year - 133,592 - — 133,592 133,592 - - — 133,592
Issuance of ordinary shares for cash 69,440 - - - - 69,440 - - - 69,440
Issuance of ordinary shares via

capitalisation of shareholders’ loans 116,568 - - - - 116,568 - (116,568) - -
Issuance of ordinary shares via

capitalisation of convertible loans 72,322 - - - - 72,322 - - (72,322) -
Transfer to statutory reserve fund - (14,127) 14,127 - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2009 258,335 211,490 37,935 (84,201) 165,224 423,559 - - — 423,559

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Share-
Share Revenue holders’ Convertible
capital reserve loans loans Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Company

Balance at 1 January 2008 - — - - —

Profit representing total
comprehensive income

for the year - 1,471 - - 1,471
Issuance for ordinary shares 5 - - - 5
Issuance of shareholders’ loans - - 116,568 - 116,568
Issuance of convertible loans - - - 72,322 72,322
Balance at 31 December 2008 5 1,471 116,568 72,322 190,366

Profit representing total
comprehensive income
for the year - 55,839 - - 55,839

Issuance of ordinary shares
for cash 69,440 - - - 69,440

Issuance of ordinary shares via
capitalisation of shareholders’

loans 116,568 - (116,568) - -
Issuance of ordinary shares via

capitalisation of convertible

loans 72,322 - - (72,322) -
Balance at 31 December 2009 258,335 57,310 - - 315,645

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Operating profit before changes in

working capital (Notel5 (b))
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in accrued operating expenses

Cash generated from operating activities
Interest income received

Interest expense paid

Taxation paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions of minority interests (Note 26)

Net cash flow on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26)
Net cash outflow on acquisition from restructuring
Proceeds from disposal of managed funds

Purchase of intangible asset

Proceeds from disposal of land use rights

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in amount due to an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Proceeds from issuance of convertible loans
Proceeds from government grant

Loans from third parties, net

Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of loans and borrowings
Proceeds from shareholders’ loans
Repayment of shareholders’ loans
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a director
Decrease/(increase) in deposits pledged
Dividends paid

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 15(a))

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
190,297 166,265

(109,493) 58,073

3,904 (5,223)
14,350 (117,704)
13,931 21,819

(793) 9,659
112,196 132,889
4,544 305
(18,596) (24,803)
(33,373) (33,192)
64,771 75,199
- (9,760)
- (6,164)

- (192,201)

- 1,300
(311) (400)

- 4,879
(30,039) (21,476)
110 39

- (19,900)
(30,240) (243,683)
69,440 5
- 72,322

- 260

- 72,062
414,700 451,000
(367,400) (521,300)
- 117,596
(1,028) -
(70,000) 70,000
3,415 (2,065)

- (55,000)
49,127 204,880
83,658 36,396
85,021 48,625
168,679 85,021

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Corporate information
The Company

China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore on 26 May 2008 as a private company limited by shares under the name of
“China Hu An Cable Holdings Pte. Ltd.”. On 27 January 2010, the Company changed its
name to “China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd.” in connection with its conversion to a public
company limited by shares.

On 8 February 2010, the Company was admitted to the official list of Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The Company issued 118,000,000 new ordinary shares at
S$0.42 per share in connection with its public offering. The net proceeds arising from this
amounted to approximately RMB227,000,000.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is 30 Raffles Place
#20-02 Chevron House Singapore 048622. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

The financial statements of the Group presented for financial year ended 31 December
2008, have been prepared using the pooling of interest method as the Company and its
subsidiary companies were under common control before and after the Restructuring
Exercise. The Restructuring Exercise is as described below.

€) Acquisition of subsidiaries

In the financial year ended 31 December 2008, Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co. Ltd
acquired equity interests in Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd, Wuxi
Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd, Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminium Industry Co., Ltd
and Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd. for a total purchase
consideration of RMB 24,105,000 on various dates. Details of these acquisitions
have been described in Note 26 to the financial statements.

(b) Incorporation of the Company

On 26 May 2008, the Company was incorporated in Singapore as a holding
company with an initial issued and paid-up capital of SGD 1,000 (RMB 5,000).

(c) Acquisition of Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co. Ltd

On 15 July 2008, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 100% of the equity interest of Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable Co. Ltd and its
subsidiaries for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB 192,200,500.

Under the pooling of interest method, the financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008 have been presented as if the Group had been in existence
at the beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and the assets and
liabilities are brought into the consolidated financial statements at their existing carrying
amounts. The retained earnings and other reserves recognised in the consolidated
financial statements are the retained earnings and other reserves of Wuxi Hu An Wire and
Cable Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries immediately before the combination.

- 12 -
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2.2

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (cont’d)

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except as disclosed
in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi (RMB) and all values in the
tables are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000) as indicated.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:

On 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the following standards and interpretations
mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)

Amendments to FRS 18 Revenue

Amendments to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs

Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligations Arising on Liquidation

. Amendments to FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and
FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

. Amendments to FRS 102 Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations

. Amendments to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

. FRS 108 Operating Segments

. Improvements to FRSs issued in 2008

. INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes

. INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

. Amendments to INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and FRS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Embedded Derivatives

. INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers

Adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial
performance or position of the Group. They did however give rise to additional disclosures,
including, in some cases, revisions to accounting policies.

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:
FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Revised Presentation

The revised FRS 1 separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of
changes in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented in the statement of other comprehensive income. In addition,
the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income which presents income
and expense recognised in the period. This statement may be presented in one single
statement, or two linked statements. The Group has elected to present this statement in
one single statement.
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2.3

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
Amendments to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendments to FRS 107 require additional disclosure about fair value measurement
and liquidity risk. Fair value measurements are to be disclosed by source of inputs using a
three level hierarchy for each class of financial instrument. In addition, reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balance for Level 3 fair value measurements is now
required, as well as significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements. The amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures.
The liquidity risk disclosures are presented in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been
issued but not yet effective:

Effective for annual periods

Description beginning on or after

Amendments to FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009

Statements

Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 1 July 2009

and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Item

Revised FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2009

Amendments to FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale 1 July 2009

and Discontinued Operations

INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009

Improvements to FRSs issued in 2009:

— Amendments to FRS 38 Intangible Assets 1 July 2009

— Amendments to FRS 102 Share-based Payment 1 July 2009

— Amendments to FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 July 2009

— Amendments to INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded 1 July 2009
Derivatives

— Amendments to INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment 1 July 2009
in a Foreign Operation

— Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial 1 January 2010
Statements

— Amendments to FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2010

— Amendments to FRS 17 Leases 1 January 2010

— Amendments to FRS 36 Impairment of Assets 1 January 2010

— FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 January 2010
Measurement

— Amendments to FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale 1 January 2010
and Discontinued Operations

— Amendments to FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 January 2010

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and interpretations above will
have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2.5

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared
for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied
to like transactions and events in similar circumstances. All intra-group balances, income
and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for by
applying the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts reported in the combined financial statements of the
controlling holding company. The profit and loss account reflects the results of the
combining entities for the full year, irrespective of when the combination takes place.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Depreciation of an asset
begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under construction. Construction-in-progress
is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset is
derecognised.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Intangible assets
(a) Software

Software is initially measured at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over an
estimated useful life of 10 years. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The land use rights are amortised over the lease term of 50 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses recognised for an asset may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

A financial asset is derecognised when

€) the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or
(b) the Group transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit and loss account.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on
the trade date i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets held for trading are financial assets acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the financial assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Net gains or net
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include exchange
differences, interest and dividend income.

(b) Loans and receivables

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.
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2.12

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(@)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
is recognised in the profit and loss account.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial
assets is reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account,
the amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying
value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default
or significant delay in payments.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business
environment where the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the issuer) that an impairment loss on a financial asset
carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances less secured deposits,
managed funds and long term deposits.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials and supplies: purchase costs on a weighted average basis

o Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
These costs are assigned on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
where, as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Grants related to income may be presented as a credit in the profit and loss
account, either separately or under a general heading such as “Other income”. Alternatively,
they are deducted in reporting the related expenses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables which are normally settled on 30 to 90 day terms,
other amounts payable, payables to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings. Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process. The liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due.

Financial guarantees are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial guarantees are recognised as income in the profit and loss account over the
period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability will be higher than the amount
initially recognised less amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher amount with the
difference charged to the profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised if
they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs
are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are ready for their
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recorded.

Employee benefits
€) Defined contribution plan

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of
the PRC. The Group pays fixed contributions into the retirement insurance and
medical insurance schemes organised by the social security bureau and has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee compensation expense when they are
due.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. An accrual is made for estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
service rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of
the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional
currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
closing rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the balance sheet date are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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2.22

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of consideration received or receivable.

(@)

(b)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to
the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Income taxes

(@)

(b)

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
(other than those mentioned above), carry-forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
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2.22

2.23

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Income taxes (cont'd)
(b) Deferred tax (cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(c) Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax
except:

. Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their
products and services which are independently managed by the respective segment
managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge.
The segment managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly
review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess
the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in
Note 27, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the
measurement basis of segment information.
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2.24

2.25

2.26

3.1

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Share capital and share issue expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital.

Transaction with minority interests

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not
held by the Group and are presented separately in the combined profit and loss account
and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders’
equity. Transactions with minority interests are accounted for using the entity concept
method, whereby, transactions with minority interests are accounted for as transactions
with equity holders. On acquisition of minority interests, the difference between the
consideration and book value of the share of the net assets acquired is reflected as being a
transaction between owners and recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to
minority interests is recognised directly in equity.

Contingencies

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in the future.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group-wide provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities/(assets) for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of the Group’s income tax payables
and deferred tax assets, net at 31 December 2009 were RMB 10,995,000 and RMB
730,000 (2008 : RMB 13,515,000 and RMB 2,089,000).
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3.

3.1

3.2

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
Judgements made in applying accounting policies (cont’'d)
(b) Revenue recognition/warranty

The Group recognises revenue arising from sale of wire, cable and related products
and most sales arrangements require the retention of a certain percentage of the
total contracted sum by the customers until the expiry of the warranty period.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Significant
assumptions are required to estimate the recoverability of retention sums and the
additional costs required to fulfil the warranty obligations by the Group. The
estimates are made based on past experiences and warranty costs are provided,
where necessary. The carrying amounts of the retention sums for the various
financial years have been disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The determination of impairment of financial asset requires significant judgement.
The Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset is less than its cost; and the financial health of a near-term
business outlook for the financial asset, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, operational and financing cash flow.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and
equipment to be within 5 to 20 years. The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2009 was RMB 120,009,000 (2008 : RMB 101,926,000).
Changes in the expected level of usage could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Revenue

Revenue represents invoiced trading sales to customers, less discounts given, and exclude
Value Added Tax.
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5. Profit before taxation
The following items have been included in arriving at profit before taxation:
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Other income:

- government subsidy 3,971 4,654

- interest income 4,544 305

- sale of scraps 440 -

- processing of raw materials 2,259 -

- gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment 92 7
Finance expense:

- interest expense (18,596) (24,803)

- bank charges (1,633) (4,689)
Amortisation for

- intangible asset (297) (273)

- land use rights (706) (747)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (11,860) (9,867)
Allowance for receivables (90) (1,373)
Writeback/(allowance) for inventories obsolescence 2,260 (2,260)
Intangible assets written off - (28)
Property, plant and equipment written off (78) (521)
Professional fees (3,247) (3,150)
Employee benefits expense

- Short-term employee benefits (29,903) (26,380)

- Contributions to defined contribution plan (2,609) (2,335)
Consultancy fees (6,776) (6,085)
Freight charges (8,367) (9,461)
Regulatory fees (1,566) (3,381)
Travelling expenses (2,543) (3,291)
Advertising expenses (3,430) (2,878)
Entertainment expenses (8,677) (4,875)
Amortisation of deferred capital grant 238 1,130
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6. Taxation
€) Major components of income tax expense

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Current tax

- current year 30,853 34,981
Deferred tax

- current year 163 367

- effect of change in tax rate 1,196 -

32,212 35,348

(b) Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation of the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied
by the applicable corporate tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
2008 is as follows :-

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit before taxation 165,804 127,835
Tax at domestic rates applicable to

results in the countries where the Group operates 27,656 31,991
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (80) -
Income not subject to tax (837) (265)
Effect of deductible temporary

differences not recognised 387 916
Effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purposes 890 1,806
Change in tax rate 1,196 -
Withholding tax on profit appropriation 3,000 900
Income tax expense recognised in

the profit and loss account 32,212 35,348

The tax rates used in computing taxes for entities incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China were 15% and 25% (2008: 25%) for the financial year ended 31
December 2009. The effect of the changes in tax rates used to compute deferred
taxation have been taken up in the financial year ended 31 December 2009 as the
change has been substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for
each national jurisdiction.
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7. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net profit attributable to
shareholders for the financial year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net profit attributable to
equity holders for the financial year by using weighted average number of ordinary shares
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The following table reflects the share data used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008:

Group
2009 2008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic
earnings per share computation 216,530,310 9,000
Effects of dilution:
- Convertible loans 154,726,865 337,086,000

371,257,175 337,095,000

Earnings per share calculated by dividing the Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders
for the financial year by the pre-invitation share capital of 469,746,000 ordinary shares
amounted to RMB 0.284 (2008: RMB 0.197).
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8. Property, plant and equipment
Machinery and Motor Office Construction-

Group Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in-progress Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2008 38,513 55,309 3,671 4,203 9,823 111,519
Additions 765 15,239 410 998 4,064 21,476
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - 32 - 32
Transfers 10,002 3,620 - - (13,622) -
Disposal (39) - - - - (39)
Write off - (635) - (96) - (731)
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 49,241 73,533 4,081 5,137 265 132,257
Additions 76 2,160 910 281 26,612 30,039
Transfers 25,999 878 - - (26,877) -
Disposal - - (360) - - (360)
Write off - (110) - (59) - (169)
At 31 December 2009 75,316 76,461 4,631 5,359 - 161,767
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 4,328 13,855 1,032 1,466 - 20,681
Charge for the year 2,164 6,148 661 894 - 9,867
Disposal @) - - - - @)
Write off - (139) - (71) - (210)
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 6,485 19,864 1,693 2,289 - 30,331
Charge for the year 2,930 7,176 815 939 - 11,860
Disposal - - (342) - - (342)
Write off - (34 - (57) - (91)
At 31 December 2009 9,415 27,006 2,166 3,171 - 41,758
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2008 42,756 53,669 2,388 2,848 265 101,926
At 31 December 2009 65,901 49,455 2,465 2,188 - 120,009
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8. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Certain machinery and equipment are pledged to secure bank loans amounting to RMB 13
million (2008: RMB 11 million). Information regarding bank loans are disclosed in Note 17
(loans and borrowings).

9. Intangible assets
Group
Software
RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2008 2,560
Additions 400
Write off (28)
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 2,932
Additions 311
At 31 December 2009 3,243
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2008 315
Amortisation for the year 273
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 588
Amortisation for the year 297
At 31 December 2009 885
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2008 2,344
At 31 December 2009 2,358

Software has an estimated average remaining amortisation period of 8 years (2008: 9
years) as at end of 31 December 2009. The amortisation of software costs is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line in the profit and loss account.
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10.

Land use rights

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost
At 1 January 34,944 40,190
Disposal - (5,246)
At 31 December 34,944 34,944
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2,874 2,494
Amortisation for the year 706 747
Disposal - (367)
At 31 December 3,580 2,874
Net carrying amount 31,364 32,070
Amount to be amortised
Not later than one year 699 699
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,796 2,796
Later than five years 27,869 28,575

31,364 32,070

The Group has land use rights over four plots of state-owned land in the PRC where the
Group’s operating facilities reside. The land use rights have remaining tenures ranging
from 43 years to 47 years (2008: 44 years to 48 years) as at 31 December 2009.

The Group’s land use rights and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB 67,190,000
(2008: RMB 74,055,000) are mortgaged to secure the Group’s bank loans (Note 17).

The amortisation of land use rights is included in the “Administrative expenses” line in the
consolidated profit and loss account.



China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2009

11.

12.

Investment in a subsidiary

Unquoted equity shares, at cost

Name Principal activities

Held by the Company

Wuxi Hu An Wire and Manufacture and sale of wire,
Cable Co., Ltd. @ cable (electrical) and related
products

Held through Wuxi Hu

An Wire and Cable Co.,

Ltd.

Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacture and sale of wire,
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. @  cable and related products

Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Manufacture and sale of copper
Industry Co., Ltd. @ wire and related products

Wuxi Shenhuan Manufacture and sale of
Aluminum industry Co., aluminum wire and related
Ltd. @ products

Wuxi Hu An Cable Research and development of
Research Co., Ltd. @ wire, cable and related products
(currently dormant)

(1) Audited by Wuxi Yixin Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. for the PRC statutory audit purpose.

Inventories

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Spares and consumables

Allowance for inventories obsolescence

Inventories recognised as an expense in
cost of sales

Inventories pledged to a bank

Company
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
261,641 192,201
Country of Proportion
incorporation (%)
and place of ownership
of business interest
2009 2008
PRC 100% 100%
PRC 100% 100%
PRC 100% 100%
PRC 100% 100%
PRC 100% 100%
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
42,002 11,962
62,264 15,124
66,121 33,981
815 642
171,202 61,709
- (2,260)
171,202 59,449
1,129,736 1,160,715
63,000 57,765
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13. Prepayments

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Advances to suppliers 28,039 33,045 - -
Advances to employees 963 3,340 - -
Prepaid expenses 3,479 - 3,479 -
32,481 36,385 3,479 -

Advances to suppliers relate to advance payments made to suppliers for the purchase of
raw materials.

Advances to employees relate to amounts paid to and held by employees to be incurred for
travel related expenses. These advances are repayable on demand.

Prepaid expenses relate to payments for professional fees directly attributable to the
Company'’s offering of securities subsequent to 31 December 2009.

14. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and other receivables

(current):
Trade receivables 351,655 368,555 - -
Bills of exchange
and promissory notes 3,060 4,666 - -
Refundable deposits 5,905 3,042 - -
Amount due from a subsidiary - - 57,000 -
360,620 376,263 57,000 -
Trade receivables (non-current) 5,861 4,658 - -
Total trade and other receivables
(current and non-current) 366,481 380,921 57,000 -
Add: Long term deposits
(Note 15(a)) - 1,300 - -
Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 15(a)) 168,679 85,021 429 286
Short term deposits, secured
(Note 15(a)) - 2,115 - -
Total loans and receivables 535,160 469,357 57,429 286

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 90 days’ terms.
They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on
initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2009, retention sums included in trade receivables, amounted to RMB
61,840,000 (2008 : RMB 36,128,000).
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14.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Bills of exchange and promissory notes

These receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally transferred to pay off trade
creditors.

Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits refer to tender deposits the Group has placed with potential
customers or agents engaged as middle persons to bid in upcoming projects. These
deposits are refunded once the tendering is over.

Amount due from a subsidiary

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable upon
demand.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has trade receivables that are past due at the balance
sheet date but not impaired, amounting to RMB 306,643,000 (2008 : RMB 346,814,000).
These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the balance sheet date
is as follows:

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables past due:

Less than 90 days 173,071 246,310
90 to 180 days 60,334 39,944
181 to 365 days 38,756 32,762
1to 2 years 30,861 26,090
More than 2 years 3,621 1,708

306,643 346,814

Receivables that are impaired

The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the balance sheet date and the
movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables — nominal amounts 61,840 37,599
Less: Allowance for impairment (11,290) (11,200)
50,550 26,399

Movement in allowance accounts:

At 1 January 11,200 9,828
Charge for the year 90 1,372
At 31 December 11,290 11,200
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14.

15.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Receivables that are impaired (cont'd)

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the balance sheet date
relate to debts that are subject to uncertainty on their recoverability. These receivables
are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

Cash and bank balances

(@)

Cash and bank balances

Long term deposits

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Long term deposits - 1,300 - -

Managed funds represent long-term investments that are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash at banks and on
Hand 168,679 85,021 429 286

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Group
2009 2008
Floating rates on cash at banks (per annum) 0.36% 0.36%
Short term deposits, secured
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Short term deposits,
Secured — 2,115 — —

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between three months and one
year.

Group
2009 2008

Interest rates on short-term deposits (per annum) 0.36% 0.36%
to 1.98% to 1.98%
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15. Cash and bank balances (cont’'d)
(b) Cash flow from operating activities:
Group
2009 2008

RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit before taxation 165,804 127,835

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible asset and land use rights 1,003 1,020
Amortisation of deferred capital grants (238) (1,130)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11,860 9,867
Allowance for receivables 90 1,373
(Write-back)/allowance for inventories obsolescence (2,260) 2,260
Intangible asset written off - 28
Property, plant and equipment written off 78 521
Gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment (92) (7
Interest income (4,544) (305)
Interest expense 18,596 24,803
Operating profit before changes in working capital 190,297 166,265

16. Trade and other payables
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade and other payables:

Trade payables 72,921 71,424 - -
Advances from customers 48,922 41,175 - -
Other payables 4,399 2,712 1,598 -
Withholding tax on profit
appropriation 3,000 - - -
Amount due to a subsidiary - - 4,903 -
Total trade and other payables 129,242 115,311 6,501 -
Add:
Accrued operating expenses 12,508 13,301 403 1,093
Loans and borrowings
(Note 17) 317,000 269,700 - -
Amount due to a director
(Note 18) - 70,000 - -
Shareholder’s loan (Note 20) - 1,028 - -
Total financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost 458,750 469,340 6,904 1,093

Trade and other payables are unsecured and non-interest bearing. Trade payables are
normally settled on 60-day terms while other payables have an average term of six months.
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17.

18.

Loans and borrowings

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fixed rate bank loans 240,300 259,700
Floating rate bank loans 76,700 10,000
317,000 269,700

The effective interest rates of loans and borrowings are as follow :-

2009 2008
Fixed rate bank loans 5.10% to 5.48% to

5.84% 8.22%
Floating rate bank loans 5.30% to 5.54% to

5.80% 7.88%

Fixed rate and floating rate of bank loans have various maturity dates till:

Fixed rate bank loans 28 Dec 2010 29 Oct 2009
Floating rate bank loans 17 Nov 2010 24 Jan 2009

Fixed rate bank loans

These loans are secured by a charge over land use rights and buildings, inventories and
plant and machineries issued and/or guarantees by following:

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Third parties 2,500 29,500
Directors of the Company and subsidiaries - 2,000
Third parties and directors of the Company and subsidiaries 197,800 104,000
Third parties, directors of the Company and a related party - 17,700
200,300 153,200
Floating rate bank loans
These following loans and borrowings are secured by guarantees from:
Directors 46,000 -
Third parties 13,000 10,000
Third parties and directors 17,700 -
76,700 10,000

Amount due to a director

Amount due to a director is non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.
- 36 -
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19.

20.

21.

Deferred capital grants

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Capital grant received 1,580 1,580
Accumulated amortisation (1,580) (1,342)
Net carrying amount - 238
Amortisation during the year 238 1,130

Deferred capital grants relate to government grants received for expenditure on research
and development activities undertaken by one of the Group’s subsidiaries in People’s
Republic of China to promote technology advancement and transfer. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

Shareholders’ loans
Loans from shareholders are mandatorily converted upon successful public offering of the
Company’s shares. The loans from shareholders are interest free, unsecured, with no

fixed term of repayment and are denominated in Singapore Dollars (SGD).

On 27 April 2009, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital by
25,000,000 ordinary shares via capitalisation of shareholders’ loan of RMB 116,568,000.

Included in shareholders’ loans is RMB 1,028,000 interest free loan which was repaid
during the year.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as at 31 December relates to the following:

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Allowance for doubtful debt 1,630 2,424
Allowance for inventories obsolescence — 565
1,630 2,989
Unappropriated profits (900) (900)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxation authority.
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21.

22.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities (cont’d)

On 22 February 2008, the State Administration of Taxation of China issued a circular
Caishui [2008] No. 001, which states that distribution of dividends after 1 January from pre-
2008 profits will be exempt from withholding tax on distribution to foreign investors. As a
result, there should be no deferred tax liabilities arising from undistributed profits of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries accumulated up till 31 December 2007. Provision for deferred
tax liabilities, however, would be required to the extent per FRS 12.39 on profits
accumulated from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the
following temporary difference:

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Tax losses 1,613 916
Allowance for doubtful debt (274) -

This deferred tax asset has not been recognised as it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the relevant subsidiary companies can utilize the
benefits.

The use and availability of these tax losses are subject to the agreement of the tax
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective
countries in which the subsidiaries operate.

Unrecognised temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries:

As at 31 December 2009, no deferred tax liability has been recognised for withholding tax
that would be payable on certain undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries as the
Group has determined that portion of the undistributed earnings of its PRC subsidiaries will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. Such temporary difference for which no
deferred tax has been recognised aggregate to approximately RMB 136,000,000 and the
deferred tax liability is estimated at approximately RMB 6,800,000.

Share capital
Group and Company
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Balance as at 1 January 2009

1,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary shares 5 -
On incorporation Nil (2008: 1,000) ordinary shares - 5
Additional 14,739,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary shares issued 69,440 -
Shares issued on conversion of convertible loans into

12,454,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary shares 72,322 -
Shares issued on conversion of shareholders’ loans into

25,000,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary shares 116,568 -
Sub-division of each ordinary share into 9 ordinary shares

417,552,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary shares - -
Balance as at 31 December

469,746,000 (2008: 1,000) ordinary shares 258,335 5
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22.

23.

24,

Share capital (cont’'d)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by
the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

The ordinary shares have no par value.

Other reserves
Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the law applicable to the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the
subsidiaries are required to make appropriation to a Statutory Reserve Fund (SRF). At
least 10% of the statutory after tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable
PRC accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until the
cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the respective subsidiaries’ registered capital.
Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may be used to offset any
accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not
available for dividend distribution to shareholders.

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 23,808 13,315
Transferred from accumulated profits 14,127 10,493
At 31 December 37,935 23,808

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the share
capital of a subsidiary restructured under common control.

Convertible loans

The convertible loans are converted to new ordinary shares of the Company at the options
of the Company or mandatorily converted to new ordinary shares upon registration of the
prospectus of the Company with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. The conversion
terms include agreed conversion formulae between the Company and the convertible loan
holders.

The Convertible Loans are secured by the personal guarantees of the Executive Chairman
of Wuxi Hu An Cable Co., Ltd and the guarantor, as well as, shares held by the guarantor
pledged.

The convertible loans are interest-free, with no fixed terms of repayment and net of
issuance fees of approximately RMB 2,281,000.

On 28 September 2009, the convertible loans were converted to 12,454,000 fully paid up
ordinary shares.
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25.

26.

Dividends
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Dividends declared and paid during the financial year - 55,000

The proposed first and final tax-exempt (one-tier) dividend of SGD1.00 cents (RMB4.86
cents) per ordinary shares to be paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2009 have not been recognised as a liability as at year end as it is subject to approval of
the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(@)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

On 22 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, Wuxi Hu An Wire and Cable
Co., Ltd. (HAWC) acquired an additional 31.7% equity interest in its 20.5%-owned
associate, Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (WSCM). Upon the
acquisition, WSCM became a subsidiary of the Group.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of WSCM as at the date of
acquisition were:

Recognised on Carrying amount
date of acquisition before combination

RMB’000 RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment 32 32
Trade and other receivables 19,804 19,804
Cash and cash equivalents 181 181
20,017 20,017

Trade and other payables 17 17
Net identifiable assets 20,000 20,000

Total cost of business combination

The total cost of the business combination is as follows:

RMB’000
Consideration for 20.5% equity interest previously held: 4,095
Consideration for acquisition of additional 31.7% equity
interest:
- Cash paid 6,345
10,440
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26. Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Shenhuan Cable Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(cont’d)

The effect of acquisition on cash flows is as follows:

RMB’000

Total consideration for 31.7% equity interest acquired settled
in cash 6,345
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired (181)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 6,164

Acquisition of minority interests

On 22 April 2008, HAWC acquired the remaining 47.8% equity interest in WSCM
from its minority interests for a total consideration of approximately RMB 9,560,000.
As a result of this acquisition, WSCM became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC.
On the date of acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was
approximately RMB 9,560,000.

Acquisition of subsidiary — Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd.

On 22 February 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired 100%
equity interest in Wuxi Hu An Cable Research Center Co., Ltd. (WHCR) from its
minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 100,000. As a result of this
acquisition, WHCR became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On the date of
acquisition, the book value of the interest acquired was approximately RMB
100,000, which comprised only cash balance. Therefore, there was no net cash
outflow from this acquisition.

Acquisition of minority interests — Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd.

On 23 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired the
remaining 40% equity interest in Wuxi Shenhuan Copper Industry Co., Ltd. (WSC)
from its minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 8,000,000. As a result of
this acquisition, WSC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On the date of
acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was approximately
RMB 8,000,000. The purchase consideration was set off against the amount due
from minority interests of RMB 7,900,000 and the net cash outflow was RMB
100,000.

Acquisition of minority interests — Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminium Industry Co.,
Ltd.

On 23 January 2008, the Group’s subsidiary company, HAWC, acquired the
remaining 0.5% equity interest in Wuxi Shenhuan Aluminium Industry Co., Ltd.
(WSA) from its minority interests for a total consideration of RMB 100,000. As a
result of this acquisition, WSA became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAWC. On the
date of acquisition, the book value of the additional interest acquired was
approximately RMB 100,000.
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27.

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their
products, and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) The wire and cable products segment manufactures wires, power cables, control cables,
aerial cables, rubber cables and special cables. The wire and cable products are widely
used in power generation plants, power transmission and distribution grids, coal mining
and shipping industries, transportation networks, infrastructure and real estate projects,
various electrical equipment and devices for industrial and household uses.

(b) The copper rods segment purchases copper in bulk form, melts the materials and
processes them into copper rods. The copper rods are used for further production of
wires and cables.

(c) The aluminium rods segment purchases aluminium in bulk form, melts the materials
and processes them into aluminium rods. The aluminium rods are used for further
production of wires and cables.

(d) The plastic cable materials segment manufactures plastic cable materials including
insulating materials, sheath materials and other auxiliary materials which are generally
used for the manufacture of insulating layer, screening layer, inner sheath and outer
sheath of wires and cables.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as
explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including finance costs) and income
taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.
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27.

Revenue:
External
customers
Inter-
segment
Total
revenue

Results:

Interest
income

Depreciation
and
amortisation

Segment
profit/(loss)

Assets:
Additions to
non-current
assets

Segment
assets

Segment
liabilities

Segment reporting (cont’d)

Adjustments and

Wires & cables Copper rods Aluminum rods Plastic cable materials Others eliminations
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

1,169,770 1,213,806 132,520 96,212 55,891 73,838 14,225 1,475 - -
- 429 35,105 286,818 13,591 42,612 55,581 34,629 — —  (104,277) (364,488)
1,169,770 1,214,235 167,625 383,030 69,482 116,450 69,806 36,104 - —  (104,277) (364,488)
4,533 292 7 10 3 2 1 1 - - - -
10,281 9,435 594 402 1,431 925 557 125 - - - -
142,434 124,016 14,263 (318) (483) (3,217) 12,221 6,514 58,839 1,471  (61,470) (631)
16,932 9,529 10 6,210 13,249 4,826 159 3,478 - - - (2,135)
822,931 589,112 16,101 73,239 41,637 32,315 11,629 10,101 3,912 290 (2,006) (537)
452,918 468,337 6,156 4,102 2,294 3,470 6,375 5,063 2,002 2,121 900 900

Notes

Group
financial statements
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,372,406 1,385,331
1,372,406 1,385,331

4,544 305
12,863 10,887
165,804 127,835
30,350 21,908
894,204 704,520
470,645 483,993
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27.

28.

Segment reporting (cont’d)

A

B

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

Additions to non-current assets consist of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets.

The following items are deducted from segments assets to arrive at total assets
reported in the consolidated balance sheet:
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Inter-segment assets (2,006) (537)

The following items are added to segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities
reported in the consolidated balance sheet:
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Deferred tax liabilities 900 900

Geographical information

The geographical segment reporting format is not presented as the Group only has on
geographical segment. All sales are transacted in the PRC which provide the Group with
similar risks and returns. For this reason, the management and the directors are of the
opinion that the Group only has one geographical segment.

Commitments

(@)

Operating lease commitments

As at the balance sheet dates, the Group had the following minimum lease
payments under operating leases on premises with initial or remaining term of one
year or more:
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Non cancellable amounts payable

within 1 year 348 436
within 2 to 5 years 255 537
603 973

These operating leases are for a tenure of between 6 months to 3 years (2008: 6
months to 3 years). Certain leases include options to renew the leases after the
expiry of the initial tenure. Lease payments under these leases are usually fixed
for the entire initial tenure. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by
entering into these leases.
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28.

29.

Commitments (cont’'d)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised
in the financial statements are as follows :-
Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000

Capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment 758 2,602

Related party disclosures

(@)

(b)

()

Sale and purchase of goods and services

An entity or individual is considered a related party of the Group for the purpose of
the financial statements if it possesses the ability (directly or indirectly) to control or
exercise significant influence over the operating and financial decisions of the
Group or vice versa or it is subject to common control or common significant
influence.

Besides the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, no significant transactions between the Group and its related parties
took place during the year ended 31 December 2009.

Compensation of directors and key management personnel

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Short-term employee benefits 1,467 1,525
Central Provident Fund contributions 523 686
1,990 2,211

Comprise amounts paid to:

- Directors of the Company 1,467 1,525
- Other key management personnel 523 686
1,990 2,211

Loans with related parties

Group
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loan from executive director - 70,000
Loan from shareholders - 1,028
- 71,028
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30.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2009.

As disclosed in Note 23, the subsidiaries of the Group are required by the Law of the PRC
to contribute to and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed capital
requirement has been complied with by the subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31
December 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, accrued operating expenses, less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
includes shareholders’ loans, convertible loans and equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the parent less the abovementioned restricted statutory reserve fund.

Group

2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loans and borrowings (Note 17) 317,000 269,700
Trade and other payables (Note 16) 126,242 115,311
Accrued operating expenses (Note 16) 12,508 13,301
Amount due to a director (Note 18) - 70,000
Shareholders’ loans (Note 20) - 1,028
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) (168,679) (85,021)
Net debt 287,071 384,319
Shareholders’ loans - 116,568
Convertible loans - 72,322
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent 423,559 31,637
Less: Statutory reserve (37,935) (23,808)
Total capital 385,624 196,719
Capital and net debt 672,695 581,038

Gearing ratio 43% 66%




China Hu An Cable Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiary companies

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2009

31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of
these risks, which are executed by the management. It is, and has been throughout the
current and previous financial years, the Group’s policy that no derivatives shall be
undertaken.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other
financial assets (including investment securities and cash and cash equivalents, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Exposure to credit risk

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
recognised in the balance sheets.

Information regarding credit enhancements for trade and other receivables is
disclosed in Note 14.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the industry
sector profile of its trade receivables on an ongoing basis. The credit risk
concentration profile of the Group’s trade at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2009 2008
RMB’'000 % of total RMB’'000 % of total
State-owned companies 236,693 66 136,048 36
Non-state owned companies 120,823 34 237,165 64
357,516 100 373,213 100

The Group has approximately 16% (2008 : 17%) of trade receivables due from 5
major customers located in the PRC as at 31 December 2009.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy
debtors with good payment record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents and
investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or
entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit
ratings and no history of default.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is
disclosed in Note 14 (Trade and other receivables).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.

The Group’s liquidity risk management policy is that to maintain sufficient liquid
financial assets and stand-by credit facilities with different banks and business
alliances. As at 31 December 2008 and 2009, all of the Group’s loans and
borrowings (Note 17) will mature in less than one year based on the carrying
amount reflected in the financial statements.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the balance sheet date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2008
One year Oneto Over
or less five years five years Total
Trade and other payables 115,311 - - 115,311
Accrued operating
expenses 13,301 - - 13,301
Loans and borrowings 269,700 - - 269,700
Amount due to a director 70,000 - - 70,000
Shareholders’ loans - 1,028 - 1,028
468,312 1,028 - 469,340
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31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

2009
One year One to Over
or less five years five years Total
Trade and other payables 126,242 - - 126,242
Accrued operating
expenses 12,508 - - 12,508
Loans and borrowings 317,000 - - 317,000
455,750 - - 455,750

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and
borrowings. The Company’s loans at floating rate given to related parties form a
natural hedge for its non-current floating rate bank loan. All of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities at floating rates are contractually re-priced at intervals of less
than 12 months from the balance sheet date for the financial year.

The Group’s policy is to manage interest costs using a mix of fixed and floating rate
debts taking into consideration the funding requirements of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

At 31 December 2009, if interest rates had been 100 basis points lower/higher for
the financial year with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit net of tax
would have been RMB 651,950 (2008 : RMB 375,000) higher/lower, arising mainly
as a result of lower/higher interest expense on floating rate loans and borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

At balance sheet date, the Group held foreign currency balances, mainly in SGD,
amounting to RMB 430,000 (2008: RMB 286,000).

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign currencies. RMB, the
official currency in China, is not freely convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC
can enter into exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions.

Exchanges of RMB for foreign currency must be arranged through the People’s
Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at
the People’s Bank of China or other authorized financial institutions in granted to
enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as purchase of imported materials
and remittance of earnings. While conversion of RMB into foreign currencies can
generally be affected at the People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be affected at all times.
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31.

32.

33.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
(d) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in SGD held by the Company whose functional currency is
RMB, to a reasonably possible change in the SGD exchange rates against the RMB,
with all other variables held constant.

Group
Profit net of tax/Equity
2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000
SGD/RMB - strengthened 3% 9 9
- weakened 3% (9) (9)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Financial instruments whose carrying amount approximates fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
(current), advances to suppliers, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
accrued operating expenses and loans and borrowings based on their notional amounts,
reasonably approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature or are repriced
frequently.

Other matters

On 27 October 2009, one of the shareholders entered into an Incentive Share Transfer
Agreement with certain officers of the Group (“officers”), pursuant to which the shareholder
transferred 17,550,000 shares (“Incentive Shares”) in aggregate of the enlarged share
capital of the Company at nil consideration. The Incentive Shares Transfer Agreement was
signed and accepted by the officers on 1 January 2010.

Pursuant to the Incentive Shares Transfer Agreement, in consideration of the transfer of
the Incentive Shares to the officers, the officers shall:

0] hold his or her current appointment in the Group or and such other appointments or
positions in the Group as the Directors may deem advisable from time to time up to
and including 31 December 2012;

(i) not dispose of or transfer or enter into any agreement that will directly or indirectly
constitute or will be deemed as a disposal of any part of the Incentive Shares before
31 December 2012; and

(i)  transfer the Incentive Shares back to the shareholder for nil consideration unless
otherwise agreed by the shareholder at its sole discretion in the event that they
terminate their employment with the Group for any reason whatsoever before 31
December 2012.
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34. Authorisation of financial statements

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 15 April 2010.
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